
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

June 20, 2017 
 

Work Session – 5:00 p.m. 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 



 

DEPARTMENTAL 

REPORTS 

 

 



14-B District Court

Revenue Report for May 2017

General Account

Account Number

Due to Washtenaw County

(101-000-000-214.222) $3,036.39

Due to State Treasurer

Civil Filing Fee Fund  (MCL 600.171): $13,230.00

State Court Fund  (MCL 600.8371): $1,360.00

Justice System Fund  (MCL 600.181): $30,924.67

Juror Compensation Reimbursement Fund:

Civil Jury Demand Fee  (MCL 600.8371): $0.00

Drivers License Clearance Fees  (MCL 257.321a): $1,830.00

Crime Victims Rights Fund  (MCL 780.905): $7,423.16

Judgment Fee  (Dept. of Natural Resources): $10.00

E-File Fee  (228.56): $3,965.00

Due to Secretary of State

(101-000-000-206.136) $1,830.00

Total: $60,572.83

Due to Ypsilanti Township

Court Costs (101-000-000-602.136): $43,475.46

Civil Fees (101-000-000-603.136): $13,230.00

Probation Fees (101-000-000-604.000): $8,935.03

Ordinance Fines (101-000-000-605.001): $79,207.73

Bond Forfeitures (101-000-000-605.003): $3,885.00

Interest Earned (101-000-000-605.004): $0.00

State Aid-Caseflow Assistance (101-000-602.544): $15,154.83

Expense Write-Off: $0.00

Bank Charges (Expense - 101.136.000.957.000): ($942.18)

Total: $162,945.87

Total to General Account - (101.000.000.004.136): $226,555.09

Escrow Account

(101-000-000-205.136)

Court Ordered Escrow: $5,525.00

Garnishment Proceeds: $0.00

Bonds: $15,096.25

Restitution: $4,578.25

Total to Escrow Account - (101.000.000.205.136): $25,199.50



Year to Date
Prior Year Comparison

Month Revenue Revenue
2016 2017

January $121,678.02 120,611.62$         
February $175,343.69 155,669.56$         
March $154,916.76 182,041.34$         
April $133,933.35 148,443.25$         
May $136,097.41 162,945.87$         
June $138,669.47
July $131,882.07
August $156,356.14
September $155,340.95
October $148,098.94
November $134,130.41
December $106,942.52

Grant: 82,500.00$            117,000.00$         
Standardization
Payment: 45,724.00$            45,724.00$           
Year-to Date
Totals: 1,821,613.73$       932,435.64$         
Expenditure
Budget: 1,443,321.00$       1,486,200.32$       
Difference: 378,292.73$          (553,764.68)$        



 

 

14-B District Court 

 

  Monthly Disbursements 

 

 May 2017 

 

 

 Revenue received as a Fine for violation of a State Statute is disbursed to the Washtenaw 

County Treasurer, for library purposes. 

 

 Revenue received as a Fine for violation of a Township Ordinance and all Court Costs are 

disbursed to the Ypsilanti Township Treasurer.  Local revenue also includes Probation oversight 

fees and Bond Forfeitures. 

 

 Revenue received as State Filing Fee, State Court Fund, Justice System Fund, Juror 

Compensation, Crime Victims Rights Fund and Dept. of Natural Resources Judgment Fee is 

forwarded to the State Treasurer. 

  

 Money received as Garnishment Proceeds, Criminal Bonds, Restitution, and Court 

Ordered Escrow are deposited in the Escrow Account of the Court. 

 

 All other revenues are transferred to the Ypsilanti Township Treasurer. 

 

 

                         May 2017 Disbursements: 

 

  Washtenaw County:                  $   3,036.39 

       

  State of Michigan:                     $   60,572.83 

 

  Ypsilanti Township Treasurer:     $162,945.87 

 

 

      TOTAL:   $226,555.09 



 

 
  
  2201 Hogback Road  Ann Arbor, Michigan  48105-9732  OFFICE  (734) 971-8400  FAX  (734) 973-4624  EMAIL  sheriff@ewashtenaw.org 

JERRY L. CLAYTON MARK A. PTASZEK 
 SHERIFF UNDERSHERIFF 

 
 

To: Brenda Stumbo, Ypsilanti Township Supervisor 
From: Mike Marocco, Police Services Lieutenant 
Cc: Mike Radzik, Ypsilanti Township Police Administrator & Ypsilanti Township Board 
Marlene Radzik, WCSO Police Services Commander 
Date: June 5, 2017 
Re: May 2017 Police Services Monthly Report 
 
In May of 2017, there were 4061 calls for service in Ypsilanti Township, which is a 5.66% 
decrease in calls for service as compared to May of 2016.  This reductions brings us to a 2.07% 
reduction in Calls For Service Year to Date.   
 
OPERATIONS 
During May of 2017, Patrol Operations has been efficient in handling calls for service, traffic 
enforcement and community engagement duties in pursuit of our total policy philosophy.  We 
will continue to focus on root cause issues and build on the program we initiated in 2016 to 
continue the positive trends in reference to juvenile issues, burglaries and larcenies. 
The traffic unit continues to be an excellent initiative and currently is shouldering a significant 
portion of the traffic related incidents, crashes and enforcement.  This is allowing Patrol 
additional time to work on case management, investigations and proactive policing.  
Please feel free to call me directly with questions, comments or concerns. 
 
YOUTH INITIATIVE 
The Sheriff’s Office continues to partner with courts, probation and social services to ensure 
that there is accountability beyond Sheriff’s Office contact with the offenders that are 
consistently involved in crimes.  The overall reductions in runaway’s, burglaries and juvenile 
mischief complaints is directly related to the Sheriff’s Office engagement of our juvenile 
population and their family structures.  When school ends in June, School Resource Officers 
Guynes and Harvey will be assigned to Ypsilanti Township in order to bring additional resources 
into the Township during our busy season.  A curfew enforcement sweep will be held this 
month on 6/16 dependent on weather.  In conjunction with those sweeps, an extensive 
information campaign involving schools, social media and Ypsilanti Township Neighborhood 
Watch ensuring that the community knows what the expectation is in regards to curfew.   
 
COMMUNITY ACTION TEAM 
During the month of May, the Sheriff’s Office executed several narcotics related search warrants 
within Ypsilanti Township which resulted in seizures of narcotics, firearms and currency.    
Our collaboration with the Michigan Department of Correction in reference to parole compliance 
continues to pay dividends.  Fast reaction to tips regarding parolee misconduct as well as regular 
home visits are expected by the parolees that are living in Ypsilanti Township and surrounding 
areas.  We also are working with the Ypsilanti Township Office of Community Standards in 



reference to two significant nuisance abatement cases that will have a significant impact within 
the community. 
 
AMERICAN CENTER FOR MOBILITY GROUNDS 
Deputies have aggressively patrolled the ACM grounds and made contact with several 
motorcycle groups which were previously using the area for stunting and racing.  We will 
continue being diligent in patrols of the area.  I have been in contact with ACM leadership as 
appropriate. 
 
PERSONNEL CHANGES 
The following personnel are scheduled to retire this month: 
 D/Lt Jim Anuszkiewicz 
 Lt Mike Trester 
 Sgt Dave Egeler 
 ACO Laurie McDowell 
Chad Teets and Keith Flores have each been promoted to Lieutenant to fill the appropriate 
vacancies.  There will be additional promotions and assignment changes in the near future. 
 
 



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

Month: May

Year: 2017

Print Option: Print Both Monthly and YTD

Include Unfounded: No

Report Offenses: Include All (1,2,3,4)

Attempted/Completed/NA: Includes Attempted, Completed

City: Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

6/5/2017 10:22:11 AM                  Page 1 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of May

Classification May/2016 May/2017 %Change

09001  MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER (VOLUNTARY) 0 0 0%

10001  KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 0 0 0%

10002  PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 0 0 0%

11001  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST DEGREE 1 3 200%

11002  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD DEGREE 0 0 0%

11003  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST DEGREE 2 1 -50%

11004  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC 3RD DEGREE 0 0 0%

11005  SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 0 0%

11007  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 1 2 100%

11008  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 2 0 -100%

12000  ROBBERY 6 4 -33.3%

13001  NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 40 45 12.5%

13002  AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 32 27 -15.6%

13003  INTIMIDATION/STALKING 7 3 -57.1%

20000  ARSON 1 0 -100%

22001  BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 12 16 33.33%

22002  BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to Commit) 5 3 -40%

23001  LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 0 0%

23003  LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 6 16 166.6%

23004  LARCENY -THEFT FROM COIN-OPERATED MACHINE/DEVICE 0 0 0%

23005  LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 9 36 300%

23006  LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS/ACCESSORIES 2 4 100%

23007  LARCENY -OTHER 6 9 50%

24001  MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 12 8 -33.3%

24002  MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 0 0 0%

24003  MOTOR VEHICLE FRAUD 0 0 0%

25000  FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 3 1 -66.6%

26001  FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 9 8 -11.1%

26002  FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE 5 8 60%

26003  FRAUD -IMPERSONATION 1 0 -100%

26005  FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 0 0 0%

26007  FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 7 9 28.57%

26008  FRAUD - HACKING/COMPUTER INVASION 0 1 0%

27000  EMBEZZLEMENT 0 1 0%

28000  STOLEN PROPERTY 1 2 100%

29000  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 37 30 -18.9%

30001  RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 0 1 0%

30002  RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 24 9 -62.5%

30003  RETAIL FRAUD -REFUND/EXCHANGE 0 0 0%

35001  VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 17 13 -23.5%

35002  NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 6 7 16.66%

37000  OBSCENITY 0 0 0%

40001  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -PROSTITUTION 0 0 0%

6/5/2017 10:22:11 AM                  Page 2 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of May

Classification May/2016 May/2017 %Change

40002  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -ASSISTING/PROMOTING PROSTITUTION 0 0 0%

52001  WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 5 8 60%

52003  WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 2 3 50%

Group A Totals 261 278 6.513%

22003  BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 1 0 -100%

26006  FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 1 2 100%

36004  SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 0 0 0%

38001  FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 2 5 150%

38003  FAMILY -OTHER 0 3 0%

41002  LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 6 2 -66.6%

48000  OBSTRUCTING POLICE 9 9 0%

49000  ESCAPE/FLIGHT 0 0 0%

50000  OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 14 11 -21.4%

53001  DISORDERLY CONDUCT 0 2 0%

53002  PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 2 1 -50%

54001  HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 3 5 66.66%

54002  OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR OR DRUGS 24 23 -4.16%

55000  HEALTH AND SAFETY 2 4 100%

57001  TRESPASS 1 0 -100%

57002  INVASION OF PRIVACY -OTHER 0 0 0%

58000  SMUGGLING 1 0 -100%

59000  ELECTION LAWS 0 0 0%

61000  TAX/REVENUE 0 0 0%

62000  CONSERVATION 0 0 0%

63000  VAGRANCY 0 1 0%

70000  JUVENILE RUNAWAY 7 12 71.42%

73000  MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 5 1 -80%

77000  CONSPIRACY (ALL CRIMES) 0 0 0%

Group B Totals 78 81 3.846%

2800  JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 64 59 -7.81%

2900  TRAFFIC OFFENSES 29 28 -3.44%

3000  WARRANTS 64 52 -18.7%

3100  TRAFFIC CRASHES 105 103 -1.90%

3200  SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 106 146 37.73%

3300  MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 895 695 -22.3%

3400  WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 3 0 -100%

3500  NON-CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 1072 1121 4.570%

3700  MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 1083 1013 -6.46%

3800  ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 94 98 4.255%

3900  ALARMS 188 164 -12.7%

Group C Totals 3703 3479 -6.04%

4000  HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 1 0 -100%

6/5/2017 10:22:11 AM                  Page 3 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

                 For The Month Of May

Classification May/2016 May/2017 %Change

4100  NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 0 1 0%

4200  PARKING CITATIONS 3 4 33.33%

4300  LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 0 1 0%

4500  MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 17 3 -82.3%

Group D Totals 21 9 -57.1%

5000  FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 1 0 -100%

5100  18A STATE CODE FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 3 0 -100%

Group E Totals 4 0 -100%

6000  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 43 35 -18.6%

6100  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 145 134 -7.58%

6300  CANINE ACTIVITIES 5 5 0%

6500  CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 39 30 -23.0%

6600  COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 0 1 0%

6700  INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 6 9 50%

Group F Totals 238 214 -10.0%

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 4305 4061 -5.66%

6/5/2017 10:22:11 AM                  Page 4 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through May

Classification 2016 2017 %Change

Group F Totals 0 0 0%

09001  MURDER/NONNEGLIGENT MANSLAUGHTER (VOLUNTARY) 1 2 100%

10001  KIDNAPPING/ABDUCTION 1 2 100%

10002  PARENTAL KIDNAPPING 1 0 -100%

11001  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC lST DEGREE 10 16 60%

11002  SEXUAL PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA -CSC 3RD DEGREE 3 3 0%

11003  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC lST DEGREE 4 3 -25%

11004  SEXUAL PENETRATION ORAL/ANAL -CSC 3RD DEGREE 2 1 -50%

11005  SEXUAL PENETRATION OBJECT -CSC IST DEGREE 0 1 0%

11007  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 2ND DEGREE 3 4 33.33%

11008  SEXUAL CONTACT FORCIBLE -CSC 4TH DEGREE 4 8 100%

12000  ROBBERY 22 21 -4.54%

13001  NONAGGRAVATED ASSAULT 181 228 25.96%

13002  AGGRAVATED/FELONIOUS ASSAULT 111 91 -18.0%

13003  INTIMIDATION/STALKING 23 21 -8.69%

20000  ARSON 7 1 -85.7%

22001  BURGLARY -FORCED ENTRY 77 61 -20.7%

22002  BURGLARY -ENTRY WITHOUT FORCE (Intent to Commit) 24 15 -37.5%

23001  LARCENY -POCKETPICKING 0 1 0%

23003  LARCENY -THEFT FROM BUILDING 62 71 14.51%

23004  LARCENY -THEFT FROM COIN-OPERATED MACHINE/DEVICE 2 0 -100%

23005  LARCENY -THEFT FROM MOTOR VEHICLE 86 84 -2.32%

23006  LARCENY -THEFT OF MOTOR VEHICLE PARTS/ACCESSORIES 5 20 300%

23007  LARCENY -OTHER 32 35 9.375%

24001  MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 59 50 -15.2%

24002  MOTOR VEHICLE, AS STOLEN PROPERTY 8 5 -37.5%

24003  MOTOR VEHICLE FRAUD 0 1 0%

25000  FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 14 8 -42.8%

26001  FRAUD -FALSE PRETENSE/SWINDLE/CONFIDENCE GAME 45 42 -6.66%

26002  FRAUD -CREDIT CARD/AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINE 40 38 -5%

26003  FRAUD -IMPERSONATION 1 0 -100%

26005  FRAUD -WIRE FRAUD 2 3 50%

26007  FRAUD - IDENTITY THEFT 40 44 10%

26008  FRAUD - HACKING/COMPUTER INVASION 1 1 0%

27000  EMBEZZLEMENT 17 5 -70.5%

28000  STOLEN PROPERTY 8 7 -12.5%

29000  DAMAGE TO PROPERTY 157 134 -14.6%

30001  RETAIL FRAUD -MISREPRESENTATION 0 3 0%

30002  RETAIL FRAUD -THEFT 74 47 -36.4%

30003  RETAIL FRAUD -REFUND/EXCHANGE 1 1 0%

35001  VIOLATION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE ACT 89 80 -10.1%

35002  NARCOTIC EQUIPMENT VIOLATIONS 37 39 5.405%

37000  OBSCENITY 2 3 50%

6/5/2017 10:22:11 AM                  Page 5 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through May

Classification 2016 2017 %Change

40001  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -PROSTITUTION 1 0 -100%

40002  COMMERCIALIZED SEX -ASSISTING/PROMOTING PROSTITUTION 0 1 0%

52001  WEAPONS OFFENSE- CONCEALED 20 20 0%

52003  WEAPONS OFFENSE -OTHER 7 6 -14.2%

Group A Totals 1284 1227 -4.43%

22003  BURGLARY - UNLAWFUL ENTRY (NO INTENT) 10 7 -30%

26006  FRAUD -BAD CHECKS 5 7 40%

36004  SEX OFFENSE -OTHER 4 0 -100%

38001  FAMILY -ABUSE/NEGLECT NONVIOLENT 18 24 33.33%

38003  FAMILY -OTHER 0 4 0%

41002  LIQUOR VIOLATIONS -OTHER 18 10 -44.4%

48000  OBSTRUCTING POLICE 37 43 16.21%

49000  ESCAPE/FLIGHT 1 4 300%

50000  OBSTRUCTING JUSTICE 75 59 -21.3%

53001  DISORDERLY CONDUCT 14 18 28.57%

53002  PUBLIC PEACE -OTHER 4 3 -25%

54001  HIT and RUN MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT 17 18 5.882%

54002  OPERATING UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF LIQUOR OR DRUGS 118 105 -11.0%

55000  HEALTH AND SAFETY 7 15 114.2%

57001  TRESPASS 3 0 -100%

57002  INVASION OF PRIVACY -OTHER 0 1 0%

58000  SMUGGLING 3 0 -100%

59000  ELECTION LAWS 0 1 0%

61000  TAX/REVENUE 1 0 -100%

62000  CONSERVATION 1 1 0%

63000  VAGRANCY 2 2 0%

70000  JUVENILE RUNAWAY 44 36 -18.1%

73000  MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL OFFENSE 10 6 -40%

77000  CONSPIRACY (ALL CRIMES) 0 1 0%

Group B Totals 392 365 -6.88%

2800  JUVENILE OFFENSES AND COMPLAINTS 228 183 -19.7%

2900  TRAFFIC OFFENSES 117 147 25.64%

3000  WARRANTS 305 263 -13.7%

3100  TRAFFIC CRASHES 515 544 5.631%

3200  SICK / INJURY COMPLAINT 504 594 17.85%

3300  MISCELLANEOUS COMPLAINTS 3592 3273 -8.88%

3400  WATERCRAFT COMPLAINTS / ACCIDENTS 7 4 -42.8%

3500  NON-CRIMINAL COMPLAINTS 5135 5608 9.211%

3700  MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC COMPLAINTS 5006 4405 -12.0%

3800  ANIMAL COMPLAINTS 338 334 -1.18%

3900  ALARMS 841 879 4.518%

Group C Totals 16588 16234 -2.13%

6/5/2017 10:22:11 AM                  Page 6 of 7



CLR-008 Monthly Summary Of Offenses (WD)

City:Ypsilanti Twp-YPT

             Year To Date Through May

Classification 2016 2017 %Change

4000  HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 9 2 -77.7%

4100  NON-HAZARDOUS TRAFFIC CITATIONS / WARNINGS 3 1 -66.6%

4200  PARKING CITATIONS 17 8 -52.9%

4300  LICENSE / TITLE / REGISTRATION CITATIONS 5 4 -20%

4500  MISCELLANEOUS A THROUGH UUUU 54 15 -72.2%

Group D Totals 88 30 -65.9%

5000  FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 2 2 0%

5100  18A STATE CODE FIRE CLASSIFICATIONS 7 0 -100%

Group E Totals 9 2 -77.7%

6000  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6000) 146 172 17.80%

6100  MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES (6100) 499 592 18.63%

6300  CANINE ACTIVITIES 37 39 5.405%

6500  CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES 144 119 -17.3%

6600  COURT / WARRANT ACTIVITIES 10 4 -60%

6700  INVESTIGATIVE ACTIVITIES 30 44 46.66%

Group F Totals 866 970 12.00%

City : Ypsilanti Twp Totals 19227 18828 -2.07%

6/5/2017 10:22:11 AM                  Page 7 of 7



 
YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

 

APRIL 2017 

 
 
Fire Department staffing levels are as follows: 
 1 Fire Chief     3 Shift Captains            19 Fire Fighters      
 1 Clerk III/Staff Support           3 Shift Lieutenants            1 Probationary Fire Fighter 
 
 

All fire department response personnel are licensed as Emergency Medical Technicians by the State of 
Michigan Public Health.  During the month, the fire department responded to 397 requests for assistance.  Of 
those requests, 263 were medical emergency service calls, with the remaining 134 incidents classified as non-
medical and/or fire related. 

 

Department activities for the month of April, 2017: 

 

1)  The Public Education Department participated in the following events: 
a) Hosted W4 County Radio Station ‘Fire House Friday’ 
b) Toured AGC Building 
c) Smoke Alarms:  546 Terrace Lane (4) 
d) Car Seat fittings for U of M Buckle Up program 

 
 

2)  Fire fighters attended 8 neighborhood watch meetings 
 
 

3)  Fire fighters received training in the following areas: 
a) Washtenaw County Tech Rescue Team 
b) Washtenaw County HazMat 
c) Swift Water Rescue 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Monthly Report – April, 2017  
Page 2 
 
 
 
The Fire Chief attended these meetings / events for the month of April, 2017: 
 
 

1)  WAMAA meeting 
 2)  Civil Service meeting 
 3)  HazMat Authority Board meeting 
 4)  US Fire Safety / Fire Pup meeting 
 5)  Obtained & Implimented New Rescue CPR Pumps 
 6)  Metro Detroit Fire Inspectors meeting 
 7)  Site Inspections: 3 (Nara Hookah Lounge, ACM, Hampton Inn) 
 8)  Wet Suppression Test for 1635 Holmes 
 9)  Fire Inspection Follow Up for Victor Street 
 10) Negotiation Prep meeting 
 11) Washtenaw 100 Reception 
 12) Washtenaw County Medical Control Board Q & I 
 13) Fire Inspector Training with Township Building Official 
 14) PreLim Site Review for Next Generation on Martz 
 15) Knox Box Inspections: 2 (AGC & Dialysis Center) 
 16) Sprinkler Inspection & Test for Medical Building on W. Clark 
 17) Burn Permits issued:  2 
 18) Addressing for Property on N Huron River Drive 
 19) FDIC Conference in Indianapolis, IN 
 20) Officer Meeting 
 21) SE Michigan Fire Chiefs meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Monthly Report – April, 2017 
Page  
 
 
 
There was 0 injuries and 0 deaths reported this month for civilians. 
 
There was 0 injuries and 0 deaths reported this month for fire fighters. 

 

This month the total fire loss, including vehicle fires, is estimated at $91,000.00.  All occurred at the following 
locations: 

 DATE OF LOSS ADDRESS   ESTIMATED LOSS 

1) 04/06/2017  9942 Geraldine  #186   $     16,000.00 (building)  
2) 04/09/2017  33 Normal   $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti) 
3) 04/09/2017  1131 Hawthorne  $              0.00 (special outside fire) 
4) 04/11/2017  7150 S Huron River Dr $       7,000.00 (vehicle) 
5) 04/12/2017  229 Oaklawn   $              0.00 (cooking) 
6) 04/13/2017  214 S Hewitt   $     20,000.00 (building) 
7) 04/13/2017  1788 Victor   $     15,000.00 (building) 
8) 04/15/2017  5290 Ellis   $       8,000.00 (building) 
9) 04/15/2017  180 N Rosewood  $     18,000.00 (building) 
10) 04/15/2017  N I94 Service Drive  $       7,000.00 (vehicle) 
11) 04/18/2017  2257 George   $              0.00 (brush) 
12) 04/18/2017  2599 Bridge   $              0.00 (fire / other - campfire) 
13) 04/23/2017  3110 S Grove   $              0.00 (brush) 
14) 04/26/2017  1431 Jeff   $              0.00 (outside rubbish) 
15) 04/28/2017  1524 Andrea   $              0.00 (outside rubbish) 

 
 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Rhonda Bates, Clerical Support Staff 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 

 

Attachment:  Fire House Incident Type Report (Summary) 04/01/2017 – 04/30/2017 



Alarm Date Between {04/01/17} And {04/30/17} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

1 Fire
100 Fire, Other 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
111 Building fire 6 1.51% $77,000  84.61%
113 Cooking fire, confined to container 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
131 Passenger vehicle fire 2 0.50% $14,000  15.38%
142 Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 2 0.50% $0   0.00%
150 Outside rubbish fire, Other 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
151 Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
160 Special outside fire, Other 1 0.25% $0   0.00%

15 3.78% $91,000 100.00%

2 Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat(no fire)
251 Excessive heat, scorch burns with no ignition 2 0.50% $0   0.00%

2 0.50% $0 0.00%

3 Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident
300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 28 7.05% $0   0.00%
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 9 2.27% $0   0.00%
320 Emergency medical service, other 11 2.77% $0   0.00%
321 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury192 48.36% $0   0.00%
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 10 2.52% $0   0.00%
323 Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
324 Motor Vehicle Accident with no injuries 6 1.51% $0   0.00%
350 Extrication, rescue, Other 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
352 Extrication of victim(s) from vehicle 2 0.50% $0   0.00%
353 Removal of victim(s) from stalled elevator 3 0.76% $0   0.00%

263 66.25% $0 0.00%

4 Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
400 Hazardous condition, Other 2 0.50% $0   0.00%
410 Combustible/flammable gas/liquid condition, other1 0.25% $0   0.00%
411 Gasoline or other flammable liquid spill 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
420 Toxic condition, Other 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
424 Carbon monoxide incident 5 1.26% $0   0.00%
440 Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, Other 7 1.76% $0   0.00%
444 Power line down 3 0.76% $0   0.00%
445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 3 0.76% $0   0.00%

23 5.79% $0 0.00%

05/17/17 15:01 1Page



Alarm Date Between {04/01/17} And {04/30/17} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

5 Service Call
500 Service Call, other 2 0.50% $0   0.00%
510 Person in distress, Other 2 0.50% $0   0.00%
511 Lock-out 2 0.50% $0   0.00%
5111 Lock-in 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
531 Smoke or odor removal 5 1.26% $0   0.00%
5501 Neighborhood Watch 4 1.01% $0   0.00%
553 Public service 2 0.50% $0   0.00%
561 Unauthorized burning 2 0.50% $0   0.00%

20 5.04% $0 0.00%

6 Good Intent Call
600 Good intent call, Other 3 0.76% $0   0.00%
611 Dispatched & cancelled en route 15 3.78% $0   0.00%
6111 Canceled on Arrival 32 8.06% $0   0.00%
622 No Incident found on arrival at dispatch address 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
651 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
652 Steam, vapor, fog or dust thought to be smoke 1 0.25% $0   0.00%

53 13.35% $0 0.00%

7 False Alarm & False Call
700 False alarm or false call, Other 14 3.53% $0   0.00%
730 System malfunction, Other 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 2 0.50% $0   0.00%
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 1 0.25% $0   0.00%
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional2 0.50% $0   0.00%
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.25% $0   0.00%

21 5.29% $0 0.00%

Total Incident Count: 397 Total Est Loss: $91,000

05/17/17 15:01 2Page



 
YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP FIRE DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

 

MAY 2017 

 
 
Fire Department staffing levels are as follows: 
 1 Fire Chief     3 Shift Captains            19 Fire Fighters      
 1 Clerk III/Staff Support           3 Shift Lieutenants            1 Probationary Fire Fighter 
 
 

All fire department response personnel are licensed as Emergency Medical Technicians by the State of 
Michigan Public Health.  During the month, the fire department responded to 389 requests for assistance.  Of 
those requests, 257 were medical emergency service calls, with the remaining 132 incidents classified as non-
medical and/or fire related. 

 

Department activities for the month of May, 2017: 

 

1)  The Public Education Department participated in the following events: 
a) Hosted Election for Ypsilanti Community Schools millage 
b) Touch-A-Truck event at Ypsilanti High School 
c) Smoke Alarms:  99 Ohio (2) 
d) Car Seat fittings for U of M Buckle Up program 

 
 

2)  Fire fighters attended 9 neighborhood watch meetings 
 
 

3)  Fire fighters received training in the following areas: 
a) Washtenaw County Tech Rescue Team 
b) Bailout training with Ypsilanti City & Superior Township Fire Departments 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Monthly Report – May, 2017  
Page 2 
 
 
 
The Fire Chief attended these meetings / events for the month of May, 2017: 
 
 

1)  WAMAA meeting 
 2)  Hosted School Millage Election 
 3)  2 Negotiation Prep meetings 
 4)  Officers meeting 
 5)  Addressing:  2925 E Michigan 
 6)  Pre-Application meeting:  Best Western Hotel 
 7)  Hydro Stat testing at Clark East Tower 
 8)  SE Michigan Fire Chiefs meeting 
 9)  Site Plan Review:  Next Generation 
 10) 2 Burning Complaint meetings for Desoto / Nash area 
 11) Pittsfield Township Automatic Aid meeting 
 12) Junkyard Inspections:  9 
 13) WAMAA Special Project meeting 
 14) Fire Dispatch meeting 
 15) Site Plan Review:  ACM 
 16) 800 Pager meeting 
 17) Fire Suppression Test:  Dialysis Center 
 18) Temporary Assigment of Staff to Fire Marshal Position 
 19) Consultation meeting for Upcoming Fire Marshal Testing 
 20) Loaned Engine 14-2 to the City of Ypsilanti Fire Department 
 21) Inspection of Hazardous Waste at Circle K on Prospect 
 22) Meeting with Township Resident regarding Home Sprinkler System 
 23) Hosted Retirement Gathering for FF Baughey 
 24) West Willow Neighborhood Watch meeting 
 25) See the Vision / Be the Vision Photo Shoot at Washtenaw Community College 
 26) EMS Regional Grant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Monthly Report – May, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 
 
There was 0 injuries and 0 deaths reported this month for civilians. 
 
There was 1 injury and 0 deaths reported this month for fire fighters. 

 

This month the total fire loss, including vehicle fires, is estimated at $4,000.00.  All occurred at the following 
locations: 

 DATE OF LOSS ADDRESS   ESTIMATED LOSS 

1) 05/02/2017  1866 Ashley Court   $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – Superior Township)  
2) 05/07/2017  EB I-94   $       3,000.00 (vechicle) 
3) 05/15/2017  773 E Clark   $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – City of Ypsilanti) 
4) 05/15/2017  1112 Zephyr   $          500.00 (cooking) 
5) 05/16/2017  1334 Holmes   $              0.00 (chimney) 
6) 05/17/2017  1076 Ecorse   $              0.00 (special outside – wood chips) 
7) 05/17/2017  3100 Washtenaw  $              0.00 (natural vegetation) 
8) 05/18/2017  6988 McKean  #288  $              0.00 (natural vegetation) 
9) 05/18/2017  St Joe’s Cancer Care Center $              0.00 (Mutual Aid – Superior Township) 
10) 05/27/2017  Tyler  @  Desoto  $              0.00 (outside rubbish) 
11) 05/28/2017  728 Desoto   $          500.00 (special outside - deck) 
12) 05/29/2017  1019 E Michigan  $              0.00 (brush) 
13) 05/29/2017  100 S Ford Blvd  $              0.00 (outside rubbish) 

 

 
 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Rhonda Bates, Clerical Support Staff 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 

 

Attachment:  Fire House Incident Type Report (Summary) 05/01/2017 – 05/31/2017 



Alarm Date Between {05/01/17} And {05/31/17} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

1 Fire
111 Building fire 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
113 Cooking fire, confined to container 2 0.51% $500  12.50%
114 Chimney or flue fire, confined to chimney or flue1 0.26% $0   0.00%
131 Passenger vehicle fire 1 0.26% $3,000  75.00%
140 Natural vegetation fire, Other 3 0.77% $0   0.00%
142 Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
150 Outside rubbish fire, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
151 Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
160 Special outside fire, Other 2 0.51% $500  12.50%

13 3.34% $4,000 100.00%

2 Overpressure Rupture, Explosion, Overheat(no fire)
251 Excessive heat, scorch burns with no ignition 2 0.51% $0   0.00%

2 0.51% $0 0.00%

3 Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident
300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 21 5.40% $0   0.00%
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 17 4.37% $0   0.00%
320 Emergency medical service, other 6 1.54% $0   0.00%
321 EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury187 48.07% $0   0.00%
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 8 2.06% $0   0.00%
323 Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
324 Motor Vehicle Accident with no injuries 14 3.60% $0   0.00%
352 Extrication of victim(s) from vehicle 3 0.77% $0   0.00%

257 66.07% $0 0.00%

4 Hazardous Condition (No Fire)
400 Hazardous condition, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
412 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 2 0.51% $0   0.00%
424 Carbon monoxide incident 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
440 Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, Other 3 0.77% $0   0.00%
444 Power line down 3 0.77% $0   0.00%
445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 2 0.51% $0   0.00%
480 Attempted burning, illegal action, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%

13 3.34% $0 0.00%

5 Service Call
522 Water or steam leak 1 0.26% $0   0.00%

06/06/17 13:07 1Page



Alarm Date Between {05/01/17} And {05/31/17} 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Department

Incident Type Report (Summary)

Incident Type Count
Pct of

Incidents
Total

 Est Loss
Pct of
Losses

5 Service Call
531 Smoke or odor removal 10 2.57% $0   0.00%
542 Animal rescue 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
550 Public service assistance, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
5501 Neighborhood Watch 7 1.80% $0   0.00%
551 Assist police or other governmental agency 2 0.51% $0   0.00%
553 Public service 3 0.77% $0   0.00%
554 Assist invalid 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
561 Unauthorized burning 4 1.03% $0   0.00%

30 7.71% $0 0.00%

6 Good Intent Call
600 Good intent call, Other 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
611 Dispatched & cancelled en route 16 4.11% $0   0.00%
6111 Canceled on Arrival 26 6.68% $0   0.00%
622 No Incident found on arrival at dispatch address 3 0.77% $0   0.00%
632 Prescribed fire 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
653 Smoke from barbecue, tar kettle 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
671 HazMat release investigation w/no HazMat 1 0.26% $0   0.00%

49 12.60% $0 0.00%

7 False Alarm & False Call
700 False alarm or false call, Other 6 1.54% $0   0.00%
715 Local alarm system, malicious false alarm 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 5 1.29% $0   0.00%
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 3 0.77% $0   0.00%
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional3 0.77% $0   0.00%
744 Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.26% $0   0.00%
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 4 1.03% $0   0.00%
746 Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 1 0.26% $0   0.00%

25 6.43% $0 0.00%

Total Incident Count: 389 Total Est Loss: $4,000

06/06/17 13:07 2Page



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 
TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

                                    
 
 
 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

 
TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2017 

 
5:00PM 

 
CIVIC CENTER 
BOARD ROOM 

7200  HURON RIVER DRIVE 
 

 
 
1. AGENDA REVIEW .............................................................................. SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
2. OTHER DISCUSSION   ............................................................................   BOARD MEMBERS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 



 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
 

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 

TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 

                                   REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2017 
7:00 P.M. 

Revision #2 6-20-17 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. 7:00PM – RESOLUTION 2017-16, AMENDMENT TO LAKEVIEW STREETLIGHT 

DISTRICT #207 

(PUBLIC HEARING SET AT THE MAY 16, 2017 REGULAR MEETING) 
 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. MINUTES OF THE MAY 16, 2017 WORK SESSION, REGULAR MEETING AND 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JUNE 6, 2017 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$755,199.16 

2. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JUNE 20, 2017 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$489,009.28 

3. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR MAY 2017 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $43,830.87 

4. CHOICE HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE FOR APRIL 2017 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,207.50 
 

C. MAY 2017 TREASURER’S REPORT 
 

 
6. ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #9 

 
2. REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN WILLOW RUN ARSENAL OF DEMOCRACY 
LANDHOLDINGS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (WRAD), AMERICAN CENTER FOR 
MOBILITY (ACM), AND THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI TO EXTEND THE 
RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL TO ACQUIRE 22 ACRES OF PROPERTY OWNED BY THE 
TOWNSHIP LOCATED ADJACENT TO TYLER POND 

 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2  June 20, 2017 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

3. REQUEST TO AMEND THE COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN WASHTENAW 
URBAN COUNTY AND YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 

 
 

4. RESOLUTION 2017-13, AUTHORIZING THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF STATE, CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, WASHTENAW 
COUNTY, HELP AMERICA VOTE ACT (HAVA) GRANT APPLICATION AND 
AGREEMENT, INCLUDING SCHEDULE B LICENSING AGREEMENT, FOR VOTING 
SYSTEM HARDWARE, FIRMWARE AND SOFTWARE. RE MASTER CONTRACT 
071B7700128 – HART INTERCIVIC, INC. 

 
5. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR THE PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL ELECTION 

EQUIPMENT INCLUDING FIVE (5) ADDITIONAL TABULATORS, BATTERIES, BATTERY 
CHARGERS, AND MEMORY CARDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $26,620.00 BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #101-215-000-977-000, TRAINING FOR CLERKS OFFICE STAFF IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $2,500.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-215-000-801-000 AND 
TRAINING FOR ELECTION WORKERS IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,000.00 BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #101-215-000-704-000 AND FIVE YEARS OF MAINTENANCE COSTS FOR 
YEARS 6-10 OF THE CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $75,456.00 TO BE PAID 
APPROXIMATELY JULY 2021 IN ORDER TO RECEIVE A TEN PERCENT DISCOUNT 
AND AUTHORIZATION FOR HART TO REMOVE AND SALVAGE OLD EQUIPMENT AS 
NEGOTIATED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 
6. RESOLUTION 2017-14, PURCHASE TAX FORECLOSED PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 

1636 BAILEY ST., 1212 E. CLARK RD, AND 679 CALDER AVE. IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$43,721.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 101-950-000-969-011 ALL FROM THE 2017 
WASHTENAW COUNTY TREASURER LIST OF TAX FORECLOSED PROPERTIES 
UNDER THE RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL 
 

7. RESOLUTION 2017-15, ABANDONED TAX DELINQUENT PROPERTY 
 

8. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK LEGAL 
ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT 1659 WISMER ST., 100 N. CLUBVIEW, 881 DONS DR., 553 KANSAS, 1137 NASH, 
AND 1814 CAROL ANN IN THE AMOUNT OF $60,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-950-000-801-023 
 

9. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK LEGAL 
ACTION TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE DRUG HOUSES BY PADLOCKING LOCATED 
AT 2357 RAVINEWOOD AVE., 1645 DOROTHY ST., AND 555 E. GRAND BLVD. IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $30,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
10. REQUEST OF ERIC COPELAND, FIRE CHIEF FOR APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT WITH 

OHM TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR CONCRETE 
REPAIRS AT FIRE STATION HEADQUARTERS TO INCLUDE DESIGN 
SPECIFICATIONS, CREATION OF THE BID PACKAGE AND OVERSEEING THE BID 
PROCESS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $9,350.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#206-970-000-976-005 

 
11. REQUEST OF ERIC COPELAND, FIRE CHIEF TO RELINQUISH ONE (1) AUTOMATIC 

CHEST COMPRESSION DEVICE OF FOUR TO BE RECEIVED FROM THE 2016 
REGIONAL EMS GRANT TO SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,863.00 

 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 3  June 20, 2017 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

12. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR THE LEASE OF NEOPOST IN710 MAIL MACHINE 
WITH MAILFINANCE, INC. FOR $352.90 PER MONTH FOR SIXTY (60) MONTHS 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-267-000-730-000 

 
13. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR TO WAIVE THE 

FINANCIAL POLICY AND AWARD THE LOW QUOTE TO SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS 
FOR THE PURCHASE OF A TORO GROUNDSMASTER MOWER IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$60,815.36 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-774-000-977-000 
 

14. REQUEST OF BRIAN MCCLEERY, ASSISTANT ASSESSOR FOR APPROVAL OF 
LETTER OF AGREEMENT FOR SALE OF 110 JOHNSON ST. PARCEL #K-11-10-211-
004 TO MIRA NELLE IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,500.00 PLUS CLOSING COSTS 
 

15. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE PRINCIPLES OF GOVERNANCE AS RECOMMENDED 
BY THE MICHIGAN TOWNSHIP ASSOCIATION 

 
16. REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO WITHDRAW FROM THE INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT CREATING THE DETROIT REGION AEROTROPOLIS DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION DATED JUNE 17, 2009 PER ARTICLE VIII SECTION 8:02 ENTITLED 
DURATION OF, WITHDRAW FROM AND TERMINATION OF INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT 
 

17. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, JULY 18, 2017 AT 
APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT #209 TURTLE CREEK #2  
 

18. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, JULY 18, 2017 AT 
APPROXIMATELY 7:15PM – CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT #210 FORD LAKE VILLAGE #2-2 

 
 

 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. RESOLUTION 2017-16, AMENDMENT TO LAKEVIEW STREETLIGHT DISTRICT 

#207 
 

 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-16 
 

Amendment to Lakeview Streetlight District #207 
 

WHEREAS, on or about March 27, 2017, the Township Clerk received a request 
from the Lakeview Neighborhood Watch, asking the Township Board for additional 
LED street lighting on William Avenue between Pasadena Avenue and Emerson 
Avenue for the Lakeview Subdivision, consisting of 152 parcels, in Ypsilanti 
Township and for the amendment of special assessment district #207 for the 
purpose of defraying said cost of street lighting by special assessments against 
the property especially benefited; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk requested of Detroit Edison, proposed plans 
describing the street lighting improvement and the location of said improvements 
with an estimate of said costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 28, 2017 Lance Alley of Detroit Edison Community Lighting 
Group prepared and submitted proposed plans to install two (2) street lights on 
William Avenue between Pasadena Avenue and Emerson Avenue for the 
Lakeview Subdivision, Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 152 parcels, which said 
plans included, inter alia, the installation of two (2) “overhead FED 65 watt 
autobahn LED’s with gray housings mounted on 6’ arms attached to one 
existing wood pole and one new pole” with the cost of said improvements being 
approximately: 
 

Total Estimate Construction Cost: ..................................... $2,798.01 
Total Lamp Charge For Three (3) Years: ............................... $879.12 
Contribution (Cost minus 3 years revenue): ..................... $1,918.89 
Total Annual Lamp Charges: ............................................... $  293.04 

 
WHEREAS, on May 11, 2017 the Township Clerk received notification from the 
Township Assessor that the cost of providing street lights for the Lakeview 
Subdivision, Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 152 parcels, which said plans 
included, inter alia, the installation of two (2) “overhead FED 65 watt autobahn 
LED’s with gray housings mounted on 6’ arms attached to one existing wood 
pole and one new wood pole” will be $3.20 per parcel for a 10-year period; 
thereafter, said costs shall be estimated at $1.93 per parcel for street lighting, 
based on general benefit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has given notice to each record owner of or party 
in interest in property to be assessed, by first class mail, addressed to the record 
owner or party in interest at the address shown on the tax records, at least 10 (ten) 
days before the June 20, 2017 public hearing, setting forth the district affected in 
said request, place and purpose of said public hearing to allow any interested 
person an opportunity to voice any objection which may be offered against creating 
said district; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has also published in a newspaper of general 
circulation the time, place and purpose of said public hearing and the district 
affected thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 20, 2017, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti held a public 
hearing to hear any objections which may be offered against amending said 
special assessment district. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
determines that the request filed by the Neighborhood Watch members of the 
Lakeview Subdivison, consisting of 152 parcels, on March 27, 2017, is sufficient 
for all purposes set forth pursuant to Act 188 of the Public Acts of 1954, as 
amended. 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a special assessment district #207 be 
amended for the purpose of providing street lights for the Lakeview Subdivision, 
consisting of 152 parcels. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board accepts the plans and 
estimate of costs as presented by Detroit Edison for the Lakeview Subdivision, 
consisting of 152 parcels, which said plans included, inter alia, the installation of 
two (2) “overhead FED 65 watt Autobahn LED’s with gray housings mounted 
on 6’ arms attached to one existing wood pole and one new wood pole” will 
be $3.20 per parcel for a 10-year period; thereafter, said costs shall be estimated 
at $1.93 per parcel for street lighting, based on general benefit. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Supervisor shall make a special 
assessment upon all the lands and premises contained herein to defray the 
expenses of lighting said streets. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall hereinafter annually 
determine on or before September 30 of each year, the amount to be assessed in 
said district for lighting said streets and shall direct the Township Assessor to levy 
such amounts therein. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that when the special assessment roll has been 
prepared and filed in the office of the Township Clerk, before said assessment roll 
has been confirmed, the Township Board shall appoint a time and place when it 
will meet, review and hear any objections to the assessment roll. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall give notice of said 
hearing and filing of the assessment roll in the manner prescribed by statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
May 22, 2017 
 
Owner  
Address 
City, State, Zip 
 
Re:   Public Hearing Scheduled for Tuesday, June 20, 2017 at Approximately 7:00pm for the Amendment of 

the Lakeview #2 Streetlight Special Assessment District 
 
Dear Property Owners: 
 
Based on feedback from your Neighborhood Watch Group, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees set a 
public hearing to consider the request for the amendment of the Lakeview #2 Streetlight Special Assessment District 
for the installation of two (2) additional streetlights on William Avenue between S. Pasadena Avenue and Emerson 
Avenue. 
 
This will include your property located at:  Property Address 

         Parcel 
 
The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, June 20, 2017 at approximately 7:00 p.m. in the Civic Center 
Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 
 
The Detroit Edison lamp layout for the proposed new streetlights is located on the back of this letter.  
 
Installation charges for the two (2) streetlights is $1,918.89. This cost is divided by the one hundred fifty two (152) 
parcels and is spread over a ten (10) year period and equals $1.27 per parcel. DTE has fixed the annual lamp 
charges for the first three (3) years, per agreement to $293.04. This cost is divided among the one hundred fifty two 
parcels (152) and equals $1.93 per parcel. After the third year, the costs will reflect the current rates set by DTE, as 
well as current electrical usage over the year.  
 
Total estimated annual costs for the additional two streetlights would be $3.20 per parcel, after 10 years the 
estimated cost would drop to $1.93 per year 
 
Homeowners currently pay an estimated amount of $1.03 per year for one streetlight on Williams Avenue, with the 
proposed addition of these additional two streetlights, the estimated cost per year, per parcel, would be $4.23. 
 
You are welcome to attend the meeting or you may send written comments of approval or objection in advance of the 
public hearing to the address listed above or by email to klovejoyroe@ytown.org or lgarrett@ytown.org. 
 
To Legally Protest the Streetlight Special Assessment: 
An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment in person, or may file his or her appearance and protest by letter before the hearing, and in that event, 
personal appearance shall not be required. The owner or any person having an interest in the real property who 
protests in writing at or before the hearing may file a written appeal of the special assessment with the State Tax 
Tribunal within 30 days after the special assessment roll is confirmed. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact my office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk   Deputy Clerk 
 
lrg 
cc:  File 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Clerk’s Office 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lgarrett@ytown.org




PUBLIC NOTICE 

Public Act of 2002 Proceedings - Notice of Special Assessment Hearing – Township of Ypsilanti, 

Washtenaw County, Michigan 

TO: THE RESIDENTS AND PROPERTY OWNERS OF THE TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, WASHTENAW COUNTY, 

MICHIGAN AND ANY OTHER INTERESTED PERSONS 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Township Board of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti proposes to install 

one streetlight on William Ave. between S. Pasadena and Emerson Ave in the Lakeview area and to 

amend Lakeview Streetlight Special Assessment District #207 for the recovery of the cost of operation 

by special assessment against the properties benefited therein. 

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the district within which the forgoing improvements are proposed 

to be constructed and within which the cost thereof is proposed to be assessed is more particularly 

described as follows: 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS LAKEVIEW SUBDIVISION 

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that said plans and special assessment district map may be examined at 

the office of the Township Clerk from the date of this notice until and including the date of the public 

hearing heron and may further be examined at such public hearing. 

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that a public hearing upon such proposed special assessment district, 

location and estimated costs will be held at the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Civic Center, 7200 S. 

Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township, MI commencing at approximately 7:00pm on Tuesday, June 20, 

2017. 

An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the 

special assessment in person, or may file his or her appearance and protest by letter before the hearing, 

and in that event, personal appearance shall not be required. The owner or any person having an 

interest the real property who protests in writing at or before the hearing may file a written appeal of 

the special assessment with the State Tax Tribunal within 30 days after the special assessment roll is 

confirmed. 

If the special assessment roll is confirmed, the Township Board intends to hold a public hearing once 

each year in future years to reassess property in the special assessment district for the costs in the next 

year, and will provide notice of such hearing by publication in the newspaper only, unless the amount to 

be specially assessed increases by more than 10 percent in any one year, then mailed notice of the 

public hearing will be provided to owners of property to be specially assessed.  

The Ypsilanti Township Board will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 

hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting or public hearing, to 

individuals with disabilities upon a 10 day notice to the Ypsilanti Township Board by writing or calling KAREN 

LOVEJOY ROE, CLERK, 7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE, YPSILANTI, MI 48197 (734)484-4700. 

       KAREN LOVEJOY ROE, CLERK 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

Publish: Thursday, June 8, 2017 





Exhibit A to Master Agreement 

Purchase Agreement 

This Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”) is dated as of May 18, 2017 between The 
Detroit Edison Company (“Company”) and Charter Township of Ypsilanti (“Customer”).  

This Agreement is a “Purchase Agreement” as referenced in the Master Agreement for 
Municipal Street Lighting dated March 28, 2013 (the “Master Agreement”) between Company 
and Customer. All of the terms of the Master Agreement are incorporated herein by reference. 
In the event of an inconsistency between this Agreement and the Master Agreement, the terms 
of this Agreement shall control.  

Customer requests the Company to furnish, install, operate and maintain street lighting 
equipment as set forth below:  

1. DTE Work Order 
Number:  

47386178 
If this is a conversion or replacement, indicate the Work Order Number 
for current installed equipment: N/A 

2. Location where 
Equipment will be 
installed:  

Along William Ave between S Pasadena Ave & Emerson Ave in 
Ypsilanti Township, as more fully described on the map attached 
hereto as Attachment 1.  
 

3. Total number of lights 
to be installed:  

2 

4. Description of 
Equipment to be installed 
(the “Equipment”):  

2 – Overhead fed 65watt Autobahn LED’s with gray housings 
mounted on 6’ arms attached to one existing wood pole and one 
new wood pole. 
 

5. Estimated Total Annual 
Lamp Charges 

$293.04 

6. Computation of 
Contribution in aid of 
Construction (“CIAC 
Amount”) 

Total estimated construction cost, including 
labor, materials, and overhead: 

$2,798.01 

Credit for 3 years of lamp charges:  $879.12 
CIAC Amount (cost minus revenue) $1,918.89 

7. Payment of CIAC 
Amount:  Due promptly upon execution of this Agreement 

8. Term of Agreement 5 years. Upon expiration of the initial term, this Agreement shall 
continue on a month-to-month basis until terminated by mutual 
written consent of the parties or by either party with thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the other party. 

9. Does the requested 
Customer lighting design 
meet IESNA 
recommended practices? 

(Check One)                                 YES      NO   
If “No”, Customer must sign below and acknowledge that the 
lighting design does not meet IESNA recommended practices 
 

Signature: __________________________ 


10. Customer Address for 
Notices:  

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S Huron River Dr 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
Attn: Karen Lovejoy Roe 



 

Purchase Agreement – Page 2 

 

11.  Special Order Material Terms:  

All or a portion of the Equipment consists of special order material: (check one) YES    NO       

If “Yes” is checked, Customer and Company agree to the following additional terms.  

A. Customer acknowledges that all or a portion of the Equipment is special order 
materials (“SOM”) and not Company’s standard stock. Customer will purchase and stock 
replacement SOM and spare parts. When replacement equipment or spare parts are installed 
from Customer’s inventory, the Company will credit Customer in the amount of the then current 
material cost of Company standard street lighting equipment.  

B. Customer will maintain an initial inventory of at least N/A posts and N/A 
luminaires and any other materials agreed to by Company and Customer, and will replenish the 
stock as the same are drawn from inventory.  Costs of initial inventory are included in this 
Agreement. The Customer agrees to work with the Company to adjust inventory levels from 
time to time to correspond to actual replacement material needs.  If Customer fails to maintain 
the required inventory, Company, after 30 days’ notice to Customer, may (but is not required to) 
order replacement SOM and Customer will reimburse Company for such costs.  Customer 
acknowledges that failure to maintain required inventory could result in extended outages due to 
SOM lead times. 

 
C. The inventory will be stored at ______________N/A______________________. 

Access to the Customers inventory site must be provided between the hours of 9:00 am to 4:00 
pm, Monday through Friday with the exceptions of federal Holidays.  Customer shall name an 
authorized representative to contact regarding inventory: levels, access, usage, transactions, 
and provide the following contact information to the Company:  

Name: ________N/A_______________ Title: ____________N/A_______________ 

Phone Number: ________N/A________ Email: ___________N/A_______________ 

The Customer will notify the Company of any changes in the Authorized Customer 
Representative. The Customer must comply with SOM manufacturer’s recommended inventory 
storage guidelines and practices.  Damaged SOM will not be installed by the Company.    

D. In the event that SOM is damaged by a third party, the Company may (but is not 
required to) pursue a damage claim against such third party for collection of all labor and stock 
replacement value associated with the damage claim. Company will promptly notify Customer 
as to whether Company will pursue such claim.  

E. In the event that SOM becomes obsolete or no longer manufactured, the 
Customer will be allowed to select new alternate SOM that is compatible with the Company’s 
existing infrastructure. 

F.      Should the Customer experience excessive LED equipment failures, not 
supported by LED manufacturer warrantees, the Company will replace the LED 
equipment with other Company supported Solid State or High Intensity Discharge 
luminaires at the Company’s discretion. The full cost to complete these replacements 
to standard street lighting equipment will be the responsibility of the Customer. 

 



 

Purchase Agreement – Page 3 

 

12. Experimental Emerging Lighting Technology (“EELT”) Terms:  

All or a portion of the Equipment consists of EELT: (check one) YES    NO       

If “Yes” is checked, Customer and Company agree to the following additional terms.  

 

A. The annual billing lamp charges for the EELT equipment has been calculated by the 
Company are based upon the estimated energy and maintenance cost expected with the 
Customer’s specific pilot project EELT equipment.  

B. Upon the approval of any future MPSC Option I tariff for EELT street lighting equipment, 
the approved rate schedules will automatically apply for service continuation to the Customer 
under Option 1 Municipal Street Lighting Rate, as approved by the MPSC.   The terms of this 
paragraph B replace in its entirety Section 7 of the Master Agreement with respect to any EELT 
equipment purchased under this Agreement. 

************************ 

Company and Customer have executed this Purchase Agreement as of the date first 
written above.  

Company:  

The Detroit Edison Company 

By: ________________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ 

Customer:  

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

By: ________________________________ 

Name: _____________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ 

 



 

Purchase Agreement – Page 4 

 

Attachment 1 to Purchase Agreement 

Map of Location 

[To be attached] 

 

 

 





 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 WORK SESSION 

 
Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

                                        Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees:  Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell  
                                        Roe, Monica Ross-Williams,  
                                        Trustee Wilson Jr. (arrived after board entered into Executive                             
                                                                           Session at 5:02PM) 
 

Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters 
 

1. REQUEST TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO MCL 15.268 
SECTION 8 SUBPARAGRAPH (H) OF THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT…”TO 
CONSIDER MATERIAL EXEMPT FROM DISCUSSION OR DISCLOSURE BY 
STATE OR FEDERAL STATUTE (SPECIFICALLY LEGAL OPINIONS WHICH ARE 
PROTECTED BY THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT)” AS IT PERTAINS TO 
THE PROPOSED NEXUS GAS TRANSMISSION PIPELINE 
 

A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to go into 
Executive Session at 5:01 PM. 
 
Jarrell Roe:            Yes                 Eldridge:            Yes         Ross-Williams:          Yes 
Lovejoy Roe:         Yes                 Stumbo:             Yes         Doe:                            Yes 
Wilson: (absent from vote) 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The Board returned from Executive Session at 5:45 PM 
 

2. DISCUSSION ON PROPOSED RESOLUTION REAFFIRIMING COMMITMENT TO 
HOUSING AFFORDABILITY AND ECONOMIC EQUITY STUDY 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that the County offered to come to a board meeting and 
give a presentation regarding housing affordability and economic equity with the 
board.  She said it was a good time to reaffirm our commitment to the study and 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 2 
 
recommendations since there were new Elected Officials in the County, Townships, 
and Cities. Supervisor Stumbo stated it would be interesting to see what other 
areas, such as the City of Ann Arbor have done to offer more affordable housing 
and what has occurred in the City of Ypsilanti and Ypsilanti Township to increase 
the number of rentals with residents of higher income and education levels and 
also for home purchases. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated she had a call from a Township Resident about an 
article written in the paper regarding the City of Ypsilanti and gentrification. 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked if the presentation could include specific information 

on gentrification.  Supervisor Stumbo said she would ask if the County would speak 

on that subject.  

Supervisor Stumbo stated she along with State Representative Ronnie Peterson 

had a meeting and a tour of West Willow with the Director of the Michigan State 

Housing Development Authority (MSHDA). She said they showed him the American 

Center for Mobility and she said they talked about the housing crisis and its’ impact 

on township neighborhoods, increasing rentals in 2008 from 300 to 3000 in 2015. 

He responded by saying people have a right to invest. She said investors bought 

houses for $5,000-$20,000 in certain areas and now some township streets have 

over 50% rentals. Supervisor Stumbo stated she told him the township along with 

the residents want more balance between renters and homeowner occupied 

homes in our neighborhoods. Supervisor Stumbo said the Director stated he would 

look into it. Supervisor Stumbo discussed the change of Cross Street Village 

Apartments from affordable housing for seniors to market rate apartments. She 

stated that after 15 years MSHDA credits are fulfilled and those apartments in that 

building will increase to market rate, leaving many of the seniors living there not 

able to afford the increased market rent rates. 

Clerk Lovejoy Roe explained other options regarding affordable housing with the 

new HUD Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing rules. She said HUD policies are 

responsible for causing both racial and poverty segregation in Washtenaw County. 

She said HUD policies require section 8 voucher recipients to live in specific 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 3 
 
sections of the County, City of Ypsilanti and Ypsilanti Township. She said it is not 

possible without allowed increases in the amount per voucher to live in other parts 

of Washtenaw County so the HUD rules are forcing HUD recipients to live in the 

City and Township of Ypsilanti literally segregating our County through HUD policy 

and requirements. 

3. FIREWORKS DISCUSSION 
 
Supervisor Stumbo explained that Augusta Township is planning a fireworks display 
at Lincoln High School on July 8, 2017 and they are asking for financial support 
from Ypsilanti Township. She said the total cost is $6,500.00 and they would like 
Ypsilanti Township and Augusta Township to come together and put this display 
on. 
 
Trustee Eldridge questioned whether they had contracted for security and he 
would like to see a better business plan regarding traffic flow. He said he had not 
found any background information on the two men who were putting the display 
on. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated this plan states they will have assistance from the police 
and fire department but does not have an exact number. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated she believes that if the township contributes to this 
display, Township residents will question why Ypsilanti Township cannot have their 
own fireworks display. 
 
Treasurer Doe questioned what our cost would be for the fireworks. Supervisor 
Stumbo stated that the total cost is $6,500.00 and Augusta Township was asking 
for up to half be paid by Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Trustee Wilson, Jr. asked how our residents would be notified of the fireworks. 
 
Treasurer Doe stated he would support paying 50% as long as the Township was 
not held responsible in any way. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 4 
 
Attorney Winters stated we should see a copy of their insurance and then notify 
our insurance company that we are contributing money towards this display if the 
board decides to financially support the fireworks display. He said the Township 
should be added as additionally insured on Augusta Township’s Insurance Policy for 
the event. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that this would be brought back to the next board 
meeting with answers to the questions. 
  

4. AGENDA REVIEW 
 

A. 7:00PM – CREATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD CAMERA/STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR THE MANORS AT CREEKSIDE VILLAGE (PUBLIC 
HEARING SET AT THE APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR MEETING) 

     
           REQUEST TO RESCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING TO THE JUNE 20, 2017 
           REGULAR MEETING AT APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated we need to get numbers regarding the 
Camera/Streetlight Special Assessment District. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated we would adjourn the Public Hearing and not set a 
new hearing tonight. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

 
Supervisor Stumbo moved this agenda item up. 
 

4. REQUEST OF MICHAEL RADZIK, DIRECTOR OFFICE OF COMMUNITY 
STANDARDS TO APPROVE TWO CONTRACTS WITH THE WASHTENAW 
COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE TO FACILITATE COLLABORATIVE SHARING OF 
SCHOOL RESOURCE DEPUTIES FOR SUMMER MONTHS WITH LINCOLN 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 5 
 

CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS AND YPSILANTI COMMUNITY SCHOOLS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $52,432.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #266-301-000-831-008 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that during the summer months the Washtenaw County  
Officers that are at the schools during the school year are assigned to work in the 
Township allowing the Township additional officers to work on youth related issues 
during the summer.  
 
Lt. Marocco stated that this program is a win win situation. He said the schools 
save money because they do not have anything for these officers to do when 
school is not in session and the Township gets the added help needed during the 
busy summer months. 
 

1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #8 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe explained the items in the Budget Amendment. 
 

2. AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE CONSENT JUDGMENT BETWEEN LAMAR 
ADVERTISING OF MICHIGAN, INC. AND THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI  

 
3. FIRST READING OF MOON STAR LEASING, LLC REZONING REQUEST OF 

PARCELS K-11-01-100-026, K-11-01-100-027, K-11-01-100-029, K-11-01-
100-030 LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF E. MICHIGAN AVENUE 
AND HOLMES ROAD FROM B-3 GENERAL BUSINESS TO I-1 LIGHT 
INDUSTRIAL  

 

Ben Carlisle, Planning Consultant, explained the rezoning request for three parcels 
on Holmes Road and one parcel on E. Michigan Avenue. He said the purpose of the 
rezoning request was to allow for a truck stop facility, which would include a filling 
station, a rest area, truck wash etc. Mr. Carlisle said the Planning Commission held 
a public meeting and denied the rezoning request 5-0. Mr. Carlisle explained all the 
reasons the Planning Commission voted not to rezone these parcels.  Mr. Carlisle 
said that this rezoning would not be in line with what the townships master plan is 
for that area.  Supervisor Stumbo asked Mr. Carlisle if we are moving forward to 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 6 
 
rezone this area to follow what we have in the master plan.  He said that they are 
beginning to look at this along with other areas of the township to see if the zoning 
was in line with the townships’ master plan.  Mr. Carlisle stated that they would 
want what is done on Michigan Avenue to be in line with the economic 
development strategy that the Township has for that area. Mr. Carlisle said that 
very shortly they would bring to the board recommendations regarding rezoning. 
He said that if they find the master plan is not valid they would amend the master 
plan but the process would be for it to go to the Planning Commission and then 
brought to the Board. He said if they find the master plan valid but the zoning does 
not relate to the master plan at that point they would recommend rezoning. Mr. 
Carlisle said he would like to have some meetings together with the board and the 
planning commission to make sure they are on the same page with what they want 
to accomplish. 
 

5. REQUEST OF MICHAEL SARANEN, HYDRO OPERATIONS FOR APPROVAL OF 
AN ACCESS AGREEMENT BETWEEN WILLOW RUN BUSINESS CENTER II, LLC 
C/O INSITE REAL ESTATE LLC, THE WASHTENAW COUNTY WATER 
RESOURCE COMMISSION AND YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP FOR CONSTRUCTION 
ACTIVITIES RELATED TO THE TYLER POND DRAWDOWN 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that until this project is turned over to the county the 
Township must have these agreements when any work involving the Tyler Pond is 
done. Attorney Winters stated the Township received $300,000.00 for the 
drawdown, which is now paid in full.  
 

6. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR FOR APPROVAL 
OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH HOPPE DESIGN FOR 
ARCHITECTUAL SERVICES INCLUDING PLANS, BID DOCUMENTS, AND 
OVERSIGHT OF THE BIDDING PROCESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH ADA 
GUIDELINES AT THE CIVIC CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,000.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-956-000-801-000 

 
Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director, stated he received two bids for 
architectural service for ADA counters and seats in the Board Room. He said that 
Hoppe Design came in with what he felt was the better bid. Mr. Allen said that this 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 7 
 
bid was just for the design of the project not building it.  Supervisor Stumbo stated 
this would be contingent upon Attorney’s review. 
 

7. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR FOR APPROVAL 
OF AGREEMENT WITH MSDS-ONLINE FOR ONLINE STORAGE OF SAFETY 
DATA SHEETS (SDS) IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,000.00 PER YEAR FOR THREE 
YEARS AND $1,000.00 FOR INITIAL DATA INPUT BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-227-000-960-000  

 
Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director stated he watched a webinar on safety data 
sheets. He said this company gave the Township an opportunity to be able to put 
all the Safety Data Sheets in a computer file, print them out and put them back in 
the book. Mr. Allen stated this system would keep all accessible areas up to date 
with vital safety issues and the information would be easily assessable to everyone 
who needs it.  
  
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:50 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                   



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:04 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent 
prayer. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

                                        Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees:  Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell  
                                        Roe, Jimmie Wilson Jr., Monica Ross-Williams 
                    

Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. 7:00PM – CREATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD CAMERA/STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR THE MANORS AT CREEKSIDE VILLAGE       
(PUBLIC HEARING SET AT THE APRIL 18, 2017 REGULAR MEETING) 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Adjourn the Public Hearing 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident thanked the Board for putting the signs out in 
her neighborhood regarding street sweeping. Ms. McCollum stated the West 
Willow Association received a grant from the Ann Arbor Realtors Board called Place 
Making.  She said the grant was given to enhance the parks in the neighborhood so 
more residents would utilize them. Ms. McCollum said they were give $1,500.00 to 
put something in the park, which would get people to use the park.  She said 
talking with residents they decided to build a shelter near the children’s play area. 
She said that this shelter was to be built using the $1,500.00 grant and another 
grant they were to receive. Ms. McCollum said the second grant fell through and 
now they do not have enough funds to build the shelter. She said she attended the 
Park Commission meeting and they are in favor of helping them but would need 
approval from the Township Board. Ms. McCollum asked the board to support this 
project. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that the Park Commission usually sends a letter to the 
Township Board when they are in favor of a project. Supervisor Stumbo suggested 
benches as a possible alternative to a shelter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 2 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18,2017 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 
MEETING AND THE April, 27, 2017 SPECIAL MEETING 

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 

 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MAY 2, 2017 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$420,086.96 

2. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MAY 16, 2017 IN THE AMOUNT 

OF $1,213,256.99 

 

3. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR APRIL 2017 IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $51,875.88 

 

4. CHOICE HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE FOR MARCH 2017 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,207.50 

C. APRIL 2017 TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
A motion made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to Approve the 
Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE  
 
Attorney Winters confirmed the Township received the final $300,000.00 from 
the development agreement between the Township and WRAD and the 
American Center for Mobility. He stated that the $300,000.00 was final amount 
due for a total of $1,000,000.00 and was utilized by the Township to defray the 
cost of the Tyler Dam removal and resulted in the Township not having to levy a 
tax against the persons who would be most affected by the removal which was a 
number of our residents. 
 
Attorney Winters stated that the Township’s work with Habitat for Humanity 
continues as we close on the properties the township purchased through the 
right of first refusal. Attorney Winters said the Township continues to have 
vacant homes that are owned by banks that simply are sitting in limbo. He said 
they are continuing to identify the vacant houses and have them registered 
making sure they are being maintained and hopefully sold to new homeowners.  
 
Attorney Winters stated the firefighters negotiations are continuing. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 3 

NEW  BUSINESS 

1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Wilson to 
Approve Budget Amendment #8 (see attached). 

The motion carried unanimously. 

2. AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE CONSENT JUDGMENT BETWEEN LAMAR
ADVERTISING OF MICHIGAN, INC. AND THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF
YPSILANTI

Attorney Winters explained the nature of this lawsuit. 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve Authorization to Approve Consent Judgment Between Lamar 
Advertising of Michigan, Inc. and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

3. FIRST READING OF MOON STAR LEASING, LLC REZONING REQUEST OF
PARCELS K-11-01-100-026, K-11-01-100-027, K-11-01-100-029, K-11-01-
100-030 LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF E. MICHIGAN
AVENUE AND HOLMES ROAD FROM B-3 GENERAL BUSINESS TO I-1 LIGHT
INDUSTRIAL

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy, supported by Treasurer Doe to Deny First 
Reading of Moon Star Leasing, LLC Rezoning Request of Parcels K-11-01-100-026, 
K-11-01-100-027, K-11-01-100-029, K-11-01-100-030 Located at the Northwest 
Corner of E. Michigan Avenue and Holmes Road From B-3 General Business to I-1 
Light Industrial based on the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
the Planning Consultants.

Clerk Lovejoy Roe read the memo from Mr. Carlisle, Township Planner stating the 
reasons for not approving this request. 

Doug Swatosh, Attorney for the Petitioner, stated the properties all around these 
parcels were zoned I-1 and having this proposed business would not affect 
the area businesses negatively. He explained why the vision of the township for 
this area was not feasible. He said realistically the property would be hard to 
develop because of its’ shape. 

Trustee Jarrell Roe stated she appreciates what Mr. Swatosh stated but she 
would stick to the townships’ master plan for this area especially since it is the 
gateway into our community from Canton. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 4 
 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she concurs with the Planning Commission regarding 
not rezoning this property. She said there would be upcoming meetings for the 
Michigan Avenue corridor regarding economic development and that would be 
the time for the business owners and the landowners to look at that corridor for 
future development. Supervisor Stumbo stated that she believed the area would 
develop in the way the Township envisions it as outlined in the Master Plan.  
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe said that Mr. Carlisle stated in his memo there were other 
areas within the township that were zoned for this type of a business and she 
hoped they would consider still doing business in Ypsilanti Township. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. REQUEST OF MICHAEL RADZIK, DIRECTOR OFFICE OF COMMUNITY 
STANDARDS TO APPROVE TWO CONTRACTS WITH THE WASHTENAW 
COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE TO FACILITATE COLLABORATIVE SHARING OF 
SCHOOL RESOURCE DEPUTIES FOR SUMMER MONTHS WITH LINCOLN  
CONSOLIDATED SCHOOLS AND YPSILANTI COMMUNTIY SCHOOLS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $52,432.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #266-301-000-831-008 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Request of Michael Radzik, Director Office of Community Standards to 
Approve Two Contracts with the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office to Facilitate 
Collaborative Sharing of School Resource Deputies for Summer Months with 
Lincoln Consolidated Schools and Ypsilanti Community Schools in the Amount of 
$52,432.00 Budgeted in Line Item #266-301-000-831-008. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. REQUEST OF MICHAEL SARANEN, HYDRO OPERATIONS FOR APPROVAL 
OF AN ACCESS AGREEMENT BETWEEN WILLOW RUN BUSINESS CENTER 
II, LLC C/O INSITE REAL ESTATE LLC, THE WASHTENAW COUNTY WATER 
RESOURCE COMMISSION AND YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP FOR 
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES RELATED TO THE TYLER POND DRAWDOWN 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request of Michael Saranen, Hydro Operations for Approval of an 
Access Agreement Between Willow Run Business Center II, LLC C/O Insite Real 
Estate LLC, the Washtenaw County Water Resource Commission and Ypsilanti 
Township for Construction Activities Related to the Tyler Pond Drawdown. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 5 
 
 

6. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR FOR APPROVAL 
OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH HOPPE DESIGN FOR 
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES INCLUDING PLANS, BID DOCUMENTS, AND 
OVERSIGHT OF THE BIDDING PROCESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH ADA 
GUIDELINES AT THE CIVIC CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,000.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-956-000-801-000 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve Request of Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director for Approval of 
Professional Services Contract with Hoppe Design for Architectural Services 
Including Plans, Bid Documents, and Oversight of the Bidding Process in 
Compliance with ADA Guidelines at the Civic Center in the Amount of $5,000.00 
Budgeted in Line Item #101-956-000-801-000 Contingent on Attorney Review and 
Signing of Agreement. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 

7. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RESIDENTIAL SERVICES DIRECTOR FOR APPROVAL 
OF AGREEMENT WITH MSDS-ONLINE FOR ONLINE STORAGE OF SAFETY 
DATA SHEETS (SDS) IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,000.00 PER YEAR FOR THREE 
YEARS AND $1,000.00 FOR INITIAL DATA INPUT BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-227-000-960-000  

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Approve 
Request of Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director for Approval of Agreement 
with MSDS-Online for Online Storage of Safety Data Sheets (SDS) in the Amount 
of $1,000.00 per year for Three Years and $1,000.00 for Initial Data Input 
Budgeted in Line Item #101-227-000-960-000. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. REQUEST TO APPROVE SECOND AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHTENAW 
COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION FOR LOCAL ROAD IMPROVEMENTS IN 
PARTRIDGE CREEK SUBDIVISION, ON FOREST AVENUE BETWEEN FORD 
BOULEVARD TO MIDWAY ROAD AND EMERSON AVENUE AND OUTER 
LANE AS OUTLINED IN THE AGREEMENT IN AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF 
$132,300.00 AND BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-446-000-18-022 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve Request to Approve Second Agreement with the Washtenaw County 
Road Commission for Local Road Improvements in Partridge Creek Subdivision, 
on Forest Avenue between Ford Boulevard to Midway Road and Emerson Avenue 
and Outer Lane as Outlined in the Agreement in an Estimated Amount of 
$132,300.00 and Budgeted in Line Item #101-445-000-818-022. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 6 
 
 

9. RESOLUTION 2017-09, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR 
OBERUN 5K ON JULY 14, 2017 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Approve 
Resolution 2017-09, Temporary Road Closure Request for Oberun 5K on July 14, 
2017 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 

10.  RESOLUTION 2017-10, TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST FOR 
RUNNING FIT “RUN SCREAM RUN” 5K, 10K AND KID’S MILE RUN ON 
OCTOBER 7, 2017 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Jarrell Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve Resolution 2017-10, Temporary Road Closure Request for Running Fit 
“Run Scream Run” 5K, 10K, and Kid’s Mile Run on October 7, 2017 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 

11.  RESOLUTION 2017-12, IN HONOR OF NATIONAL POLLINATOR WEEK JUNE 
11-17, 2017 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Treasurer Doe to Approve 
Resolution 2017-12, in honor of National Pollinator Week June 11-17, 2017 (see 
attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 

12.  REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2017 AT 
APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – AMENDMENT OF LAKEVIEW STREETLIGHT 
DISTRICT #207 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve Request to Set a Public Hearing Date of Tuesday, June 20, 2017 at 
Approximately 7:00pm – Amendment of Lakeview Streetlight District #207. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2017 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 7 
 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Wilson to Adjourn. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:45p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

May 16, 2017

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $257,491.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $3,302.00

Net Revenues $3,302.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 101-253-000-708.004 $3,067.00
FICA 101-253-000-715.000 $235.00

Net Expenditures $3,302.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $445.00

Net Revenues $445.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 101-371-000-708.004 $413.00
FICA 101-371-000-715.000 $32.00

Net Expenditures $445.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $20,000.00

Net Revenues $20,000.00

Expenditures: 
Highways Street Sidewalk Construction 101-446-000-818.022 $20,000.00

Net Expenditures $20,000.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 148 hours to be paid 
at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 18.5 hours to be 
paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase re-budget for continuation of the Washtenaw Avenue CDBG project.  This is to acquire the 
necessary easements relating to the Washtenaw Avenue Sidewalk Infill Project.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 3



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

May 16, 2017

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND - CONTINUED

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $132,300.00

Net Revenues $132,300.00

Expenditures: 
Highways Street Sidewalk Construction 101-446-000-818.022 $132,300.00

Net Expenditures $132,300.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $51,944.00

Net Revenues $51,944.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay - Tyler Dam Project 101-970-000-971.100 $51,944.00

Net Expenditures $51,944.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $49,500.00

Net Revenues $49,500.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay - Veterans Drive 101-970-000-976-007 $49,500.00

Net Expenditures $49,500.00

248 - HOUSING & BUSINESS INSPECTION FUND Total Increase $445.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 248-000-000-699.000 $445.00

Net Revenues $445.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 248-248-000-708.004 $413.00
FICA 248-248-000-715.000 $32.00

Net Expenditures $445.00

Request to re-budget approved funds for the Veteran's Drive Project. This will complete the project in 2017. This 
will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to re-budget the approved engineering services of  Stantec for phase #4 of the Tyler Dam Pond. This will 
be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 18.5 hours to be 
paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for Agreement with Washtenaw County Road Commission for road improvements on 
the following; Partridge Creek Subdivision, Forest Avenue, and Emerson Avenue and Outer Lane Drive.    This will 
be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

2 of 3



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

May 16, 2017

249 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND Total Increase $888.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 249-000-000-699.000 $888.00

Net Revenues $888.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 249-249-000-708.004 $825.00
FICA 249-249-000-715.000 $63.00

Net Expenditures $888.00

266 - LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND Total Increase $1,776.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 266-000-000-699.000 $1,776.00

Net Revenues $1,776.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out -PTO 266-301-000-708.004 $825.00
FICA 266-301-000-715.000 $63.00
Salaries pay out -PTO 266-304-000-708.004 $825.00
FICA 266-304-000-715.000 $63.00

Net Expenditures $1,776.00

590 - COMPOST FUND Total Increase $3,575.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 590-000-000-699.000 $3,575.00

Net Revenues $3,575.00

Expenditures: Salaries pay out - PTO 590-590-000-708.004 $3,321.00
FICA 590-590-000-715.000 $254.00

Net Expenditures $3,575.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 122 hours to be paid 
at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 37 hours to be paid 
at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request over the budgeted 32 hours, an additional 74 hours to be paid 
at 75%.  This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

3 of 3



Motion to Amend the 2017 Budget (#8): 
 
 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $257,491 to $9,387,436 and approve the 
department line item changes as outlined. 

 
Move to increase the Housing & Business Inspection Fund budget by $445 to $320,069 

and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 
 
Move to increase the Building Fund budget by $888 to $730,510 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 
Move to increase the Law Enforcement Fund budget by $1,776 to $7,026,743 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 
 
Move to increase the Compost Fund budget by $3,575 to $530,109 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
OF YPSILANTI 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-09 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard to enter Rolling Hills on Friday, July 14, 2017 from 6:30 p.m. to 7:00 
p.m. for the Oberun 5K to benefit Karen’s Trail/Friends of the Border to 
Border Trail. 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2017-09 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on May 16, 2017. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                            Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
OF YPSILANTI 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Merritt Road between 
Munger and Stoney Creek for runners to cross Merritt Road at Wiard’s 
Orchard on Saturday, October 7, 2016 from 8:30 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. for the 
Run Scream Run 5K, 10K and Kid’s Mile to benefit the March of Dimes of 
Southeastern Michigan. 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Randal Step, owner R.F. 
Events be the authorized official designee in this instance, when 
application is made to the Washtenaw County Road Commission for this 
temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2017-10 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on May 16, 2017. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                            Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

Resolution No. 2017-12 
 

In Honor of 
National Pollinator Week 

June 11-17, 2017 
 
 
 
WHEREAS in 2015, Ypsilanti Township received the first Bee City 
USA designation in the State of Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS the goal of BEE CITY USA is to promote healthy, 
sustainable habitats and communities for bees and other pollinators; 
and 
 
WHEREAS bees and other pollinators around the globe have 
experienced dramatic declines due to a combination of habitat loss, 
use of pesticides and the spread of pests and diseases, with grave 
implications for the future health of flora and fauna; and 
 
WHEREAS we all have the opportunity to support bees and other 
pollinators on both public and private land; and 

 
WHEREAS supporting pollinators fosters environmental awareness 
and sustainability, and increases interactions among community 
stewards such as commercial and backyard beekeepers, farmers, 
children, educators, Master Naturalists, Master Gardeners, plant 
nurseries, municipalities, neighborhoods, and garden suppliers and 
clubs; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti Board of Trustees does hereby proclaim the week of June 
11-17, 2017 NATIONAL POLLINATOR WEEK in Ypsilanti Township 
and we encourage all citizens to obtain and share information about 
the proper uses of fertilizers in order to ensure a healthy future for all. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2017-12 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on May 16, 2017. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                            Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 





















 

ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #9

June 20, 2017

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $102,325.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $34,590.00

Net Revenues $34,590.00

Expenditures: APPOINTED OFFICIALS          101-215-000-704.000 $4,000.00
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 101-215-000-801.000 $2,500.00
EQUIPMENT   101-215-000-977.000 $28,090.00

Net Expenditures $34,590.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $40,816.00

Net Revenues $40,816.00

Expenditures: Equipment 101-774-000-977.000 $40,816.00

Net Expenditures $40,816.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $1,919.00

Net Revenues $1,919.00

Expenditures: Street Light - Construction/Conversion 101-956-000-926.050 $1,919.00

Net Expenditures $1,919.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $25,000.00

Net Revenues $25,000.00

Expenditures: Cap Outlay - Furniture & Fixtures 101-970-000-975.135 $25,000.00

Net Expenditures $25,000.00

Budget for DTE to install an 2 overhead LED street light along William Ave between S Pasadena Ave & Emerson 
Ave.  These streetlights will eventually be placed on the special assessment tax roll for reimbursement back to the 
general fund, but for now it will be fund by an  Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget to purchase a Toro mower. The cost of the mower is  not to exceed the estimated cost 
of $60,816 and the requested increase to the budget is $40,816.  This will be funded by an  Appropriation of Prior 
Year Fund Balance.

Budget for new required election equipment and training.  This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year 
Fund Balance. 

Request to Budget for new furniture and fixtures in the Civic Center. We are in need of office furniture for 
Supervisor Stumbo on the second floor, as well as replacing some furniture that is well over 20 years old and 
breaks apart when trying to move.  We are also in need of some desks that are ergonomically correct  to promote 
health and wellness. This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2017 BUDGET AMENDMENT #9

June 20, 2017

206 - FIRE FUND Total Increase $9,350.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 206-000-000-699.00 $9,350.00

Net Revenues $9,350.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay Fire Station 206-970-000-976.005 $9,350.00

Net Expenditures $9,350.00

Request to Budget for OHM to provide  the engineering services for replacement of existing concrete parking lot, 
curbs and driveways at 222 S Ford Blvd. This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

2 of 2



Motion to Amend the 2017 Budget (#9): 
 
 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $102,325 to $9,489,761 and approve the 
department line item changes as outlined. 

 
Move to increase the Fire Fund budget by $9,350 to $5,098,019 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



McLAIN & WINTERS 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

61 N. HURON 
YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 48197 

(734) 481-1120  
DENNIS O. McLAIN                                                                                                                                                 FAX (734) 481-8909 
WM. DOUGLAS WINTERS                                                                                                                     E-MAIL: mcwinlaw@gmail.com 
ANGELA B. KING 

 
 

May 24, 2017 
 
 

Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Larry Doe, Treasurer 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Dr. 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
 
 

 
 

Re: 1. Confirmation of My Telephone Conversation With WRAD 
Attorney Alan Wallace on Monday, May 22, 2017 Wherein I 
Acknowledged the Receipt of the “First Amendment to 
Comprehensive Development Agreement” Seeking a One Year 
Extension as it Pertains to WRAD’s “…Right of First Refusal” to 
Acquire the 22 Acre Property Owned by Ypsilanti Township that is 
Located Adjacent to Tyler Pond which Option is Scheduled to Expire 
on June 1, 2017, a Copy of the First Amendment Being Attached 
Hereto 

 
 2. Letter to Attorneys Wallace and Asciutto Confirming that the 

Option Deadline of June 1, 2017 Has Been Extended Pursuant to the 
Direction of the Township’s Full Time Elected Officials Until the Next 
Township Board Meeting Which is Scheduled for June 20, 2017 
Wherein the One Year Option Extension Request will be Considered 
by the Board 

 
 
Dear Board Members and Director Radzik: 
 
As a follow up to my previous letter dated May 18, 2017, this will confirm that on 
Friday, May 19 I received an email from WRAD Attorney Alan Wallace wherein 

mailto:mwatty@voyager.net


Township Board 
Re:  WRAD and ACM 
May 24, 2017 
Page 2 
 
he attached a draft copy of the proposed “First Amendment to Comprehensive 
Development Agreement” seeking an one year extension of WRAD’s “Right of 
First Refusal” to acquire the 22 acre property owned by the Township that is 
located adjacent to Tyler Pond.  I have attached for your convenience a copy of 
my letter dated May 18 setting forth inter alia the basis for the request of the one 
year extension.   
 
Inasmuch as the June 1 option deadline will expire prior to the next Township 
Board meeting, I have advised Attorneys Wallace and Asciutto that said deadline 
has been extended pursuant to the direction of the Township’s full time elected 
officials until the next regular meeting of the Township Board which is scheduled 
for Tuesday, June 20, 2017.  As also stated to both attorneys, I do not have any 
objections to the request for an one year extension and will be recommending 
that said extension be granted as both WRAD and ACM continue to complete 
Phase 1A of the Highway Loop. 
 
If after review of this correspondence and attachments you have any questions 
or if I can be of further assistance, please contact me. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Wm. Douglas Winters 
js/encl 
cc: Trustees   

Alex Mamo 
Richard Carlisle  
Ben Carlisle 
Eric Humensky  
Dennis O. McLain  



1

FIRST AMENDMENT TO COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to Comprehensive Development Agreement (“First 
Amendment”) is hereby entered into as of the ____ day of May, 2017, by and among WILLOW 
RUN ARSENAL OF DEMOCRACY LANDHOLDINGS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a 
Michigan limited partnership (“WRAD”), AMERICAN CENTER FOR MOBILITY, a Michigan 
non-profit corporation (“ACM”), and the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, a Michigan 
municipal corporation (“Township”; together with WRAD and ACM, the “Parties” and each, 
without distinction, a “Party”).

RECITALS:

A. The Parties entered into that certain Comprehensive Development Agreement 
dated November 4, 2016 (the “Agreement”) with regard to the “Property” and the “Project” as 
such terms are defined and more particularly described in the Agreement.

B. The Parties desire to amend paragraph 5(a) of the Agreement as set forth herein.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein and in 
the Agreement, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. One (1) Year Extension of Right of First Refusal for Acquisition of Township 
Parcel. Section 5(a) of the Agreement is amended such that the exclusive right of first refusal 
granted by the Township to WRAD for the acquisition of the Township Parcel shall be extended 
for one (1) year and shall expire on June 1, 2018.

2. Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms used in this First Amendment but not defined 
herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Agreement.

3. Conflict.  In the event of a conflict between or ambiguity created by the terms of 
the Agreement and this First Amendment, the terms of this First Amendment shall control.

4.  Ratification.  In all other respects, the Parties hereby reinstate and reaffirm all of 
the covenants, agreements, terms, conditions and other provisions of the Agreement and hereby 
agree that the Agreement is in full force and effect as modified by this First Amendment.  

5. Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  Signed copies may be sent by email, or facsimile transmission which shall be 
conclusive legal evidence of original signatures.



2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment effective as of the 
date first written above.

WILLOW RUN ARSENAL OF DEMOCRACY 
LANDHOLDINGS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
a Michigan limited partnership

By Willow Run Land Management Services,
General Partner

By: 
Charles A. Fiedler, President

AMERICAN CENTER FOR MOBILITY, a 
Michigan non-profit corporation

By: 
John Maddox, President and CEO

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI,
a Michigan municipal corporation

By: ______________________________________
Brenda L. Stumbo, Township Supervisor

And by: _________________________________
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Township Clerk

29156578.1\155460-00001 









CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Resolution 2017-13 

 
Authorizing the State of Michigan, Michigan Department of State and the Charter 

Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Help America Vote Act (HAVA) Grant 

Application and Agreement, including Schedule B License Agreement for Verity 

Software, for Voting System Hardware, Firmware and Software, RE: Master 

Contract 071B7700128-Hart Intercivic, Inc. 

  

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti wishes to apply to the Secretary of State 
for a grant to purchase a new voting system, which includes precinct tabulators, Absent 
Voter County Board (AVCB) tabulators and  accessible voting devices for use by 
individuals with disabilities,  and  

 

WHEREAS, funding for the new voting system will be provided by the State of Michigan, 
and will include a combination of Federal Help America Vote Act and State of Michigan 
appropriated funds, and  

 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti plans to begin implementation of the new 
voting system in November of 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Washtenaw County Clerk is requesting approval of the Help America 
Vote Act (HAVA) Grant Application and  Agreement with the State of Michigan for the 
New Voting System Hardware,   Firmware and Software, RE:  Master Contract 
071B7700128-Hart Intercivic, Inc. by June, 2017;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk, Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti is authorized to submit the Help America Vote Act (HAVA)  Grant 
Application and Agreement as Grant Manager and Supervisor Stumbo and Clerk 
Lovejoy Roe are authorized to sign the Grant Application and Agreement, including 
Schedule B License Agreement for Verity Software on behalf of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County on this day of June 20, 2017.   

 



 
 
 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees  
 
From: Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 
Date: June 9, 2017 
 
Subject:   June 20, 2017 Board Agenda Items Related to New Voting Equipment:  

1) Resolution Authorizing State of Michigan, Department of State And 
Washtenaw County, Township of Ypsilanti, Help America Vote Act (HAVA) 
Grant Application & Agreement, including Schedule B License Agreement for 
Verity Software, for Voting System Hardware, Firmware and Software, RE: 
Master Contract 071B7700128- Hart Intercivic, Inc.  2) Purchase of 
Backup/Absentee Counting Board Voting Equipment, Accessories and 
Maintenance (years 6-10, 2022-2026) and Authorization for Hart to Remove 
Old Equipment and Salvage as negotiated by State of Michigan, 3) Budget 
Amendment for Backup/Absentee Counting Board Voting Equipment, 
Accessories, and Training   

 
The State of Michigan, Michigan Department of State is requiring all municipalities in the 
State of Michigan to purchase and utilize new election equipment beginning in 2017.  All 
of Washtenaw County will be utilizing new voting equipment in the November 7, 2017 
election.  Washtenaw County selected Hart Intercivic, Inc. out of three vendors to 
provide election equipment to all Washtenaw County municipalities.  
 
On the Tuesday, June 20, 2017 board agenda there are several items related to the 
requirement to implement the new equipment by the November 2017 election.   
 
The State of Michigan is providing a Grant Application/ Agreement as the mechanism 
by which Ypsilanti Township must apply to receive the Federal HAVA and State-
appropriated funded voting systems, including optical scan tabulators and accessible 
voting devices, pursuant to the Federal Help America Vote Act (HAVA) of 2002.  
 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Clerk’s Office 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 



On the agenda is a request to approve Resolution 2017-13, authorizing myself, 
Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe to submit the Grant Application/ Agreement as Grant 
Manager and to authorize Supervisor Brenda Stumbo and myself, Clerk Karen 
Lovejoy Roe to sign the Grant Application/ Agreement, including Schedule B 
License Agreement for Verity Software on behalf of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti.  Also included in the packet is the grant application/agreement with the State 
of Michigan, Department of State and Washtenaw County, Ypsilanti Township and the 
Schedule B License Agreement for the Verity Software. 
 
The grant has requirements that all municipalities must meet regarding maintaining 
records and files related to the ordering, delivery, testing, maintenance and repairs of 
voting systems. The Clerk’s office is developing plans to provide for the safe storage of 
all new voting equipment and for proper inventory control measures to insure that 
Ypsilanti Township meets the requirements of the Grant.  Ypsilanti Township will 
maintain detailed documentation for a period of not less than six (6) years from the date 
of Contract termination (10 Years), the date of submission of the final expenditure report 
or until any litigation and audit findings have been resolved, whichever is later.   
Ypsilanti Township must have proper physical inventory of the equipment, and must 
have adequate controls to ensure safeguards to prevent loss, damage or theft of the 
property.  The Township must have maintenance procedures to insure the property is 
maintained in good condition.  The Grant Application/ Agreement will use Federal and 
State Funds to pay for the basic precinct equipment for 19 precincts and the Absentee 
Counting Board for Ypsilanti Township.  This includes 1 tabulator per precinct, 1 ballot 
storage container per precinct, 1 accessible device/with stands and 1 printer per polling 
location (14 locations for Ypsilanti Township), one memory card (vDrive) per device, 
one security key per jurisdiction, and wireless modems for transmission of election 
results. The Grant Application/Agreement will also pay for three (3) tabulators for the 
Absentee Count Board for Ypsilanti Township.  Also provided in the Grant 
Application/Agreement are all maintenance costs for the basic equipment for 5 years, 
2017-2021. The Grant Application/Agreement will provide $256,840 for all the cost of 
the equipment plus 5 years of maintenance for Ypsilanti Township. This is $173,000 for 
the equipment and $83,840 for the 5-year maintenance on all equipment ($16,768 per 
year). 
 
There is another Agenda item requesting approval to purchase additional election 
equipment, accessories, training  and equipment maintenance for years 6-10 
(grant pays for maintenance for years 1-5) with the maintenance costs to be paid 
in total in approximately July 2021 in the amount of $75,456 and to authorize Hart 
to remove and salvage the old equipment as negotiated by the State of Michigan. 
  
The additional costs will include the purchase of five (5) additional tabulators at the cost 
of $5,000 per tabulator.  These tabulators are the back-up tabulators in case of a break 
down and extra tabulators needed for the Absentee Count Board during the Presidential 
Elections.  The accessories not included in the Grant are 3 battery chargers ($540 
each,) 10-memory cards ($45 each) and 10 batteries ($102 each). Equipment 
maintenance costs for years 6-10 is $75,456 or $15,091.20 per year (this is a 10% 



savings of $8,384.00 if paid before the beginning of year 5) and is not included in the 
Grant.  Also the cost of training with Washtenaw County  is $2,500.  
 
Finally, the cost of training election inspectors on the new equipment will be 
approximately $4,000.00. This is based upon training 80 inspectors four hours each , 40 
at $12.00 per hour and 40 at $13.00 per hour.  
 
A budget amendment for $34,590 is requested on the agenda for all the costs 
listed above for the new election equipment, training and maintenance.  
 
If you have any questions please call me at 734.484.4700 work or 734.260.6578 cell.    
 
cc: Files 
 
 
 
 

















CONTRACT #071B7700128

167 

SCHEDULE B LICENSE AGREEMENT 
Hart InterCivic, Inc. 

 
VERITY 

 
SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

This Software License Agreement (“Agreement”), entered into effective as of _______________, 201__ (“the 
Effective Date”) by and between Hart InterCivic, Inc., a Texas corporation (“Hart”) and the Customer set forth below 
(”Customer”), sets forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which Customer may procure or license from Hart certain software 
(“Software”) for use in connection with certain hardware (“Hardware”).  Hart will provide Software support services (“Software 
Support Services”), and/or design, engineering, software development, project management, operational training, election 
event support, and/or other services (“Professional Services”), from time to time pursuant to that certain Standard Contract 
Terms dated as of the Effective date between Hart and Customer (“Contract”). Hardware and Software may be referred to as 
“Products” and Software Support Services and/or related services and/or Professional Services may be referred to as 
“Services.” Products may be “Hart Hardware,” and “Hart Proprietary Software,” (i.e. “Hart Products”) or “Third Party 
Hardware” and “Sublicensed Software” (i.e. “Third Party Products”). The foregoing may be referred to together as the 
“Verity system.”  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the meanings assigned to them in the Contract. 

Hart agrees to sell or provide to Customer Software and Services according to this Agreement and the Contract, which 
includes all Schedules, Attachments and Exhibits hereto and thereto. Customer agrees to all terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and the Contract, which includes all Schedules, Attachments and Exhibits hereto and thereto. 

Agreed and Accepted: 

Customer     Hart 

Jurisdiction: _______________________ 

Executed By:_______________________  __________________________ 

Name: __________________________  Phillip W. Braithwaite 

Title: __________________________  CEO 

This Agreement is not effective until executed by both parties. 
Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute 
and deliver this Agreement.  



CONTRACT #071B7700128

168 

   

1. RESERVED. 

2. PRICING AND PAYMENT 

2.1. Software Subscription and License Fee. The “License Fee” is the fee for licensing (in the case of Hart Proprietary 
Software), sublicensing (in the case of Sublicensed Software, if any) and support (a “License and Support 
Subscription”) for the Term (defined below). Pricing for the License Fee is included within the Schedule C Cost Tables.  
Pricing for subsequently ordered License and Support Subscriptions beyond the Term shall be mutually agreed between 
the parties. 

2.2. Other Services. Pricing and payment for Professional Services for custom software development shall be set forth in 
the Contract or if not specified, as agreed between Hart and Customer. 

2.3. Payment. The License Fee is due upon receipt of Deliverables and the EMS Software.  

3. RESERVED.

4. SOFTWARE SPECIFIC TERMS

4.1. License. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, during the Term, Hart grants to Customer (i) a personal, 
nonexclusive, nontransferable and limited license to use the Hart Proprietary Software (which includes firmware, 
meaning the Hart Proprietary Software embedded in any Verity system device that allows execution of the software 
functions) and (ii) a personal, nonexclusive, nontransferable and limited sublicense to use the Sublicensed Software, if 
applicable. With this right to use, Hart will provide Customer, and Customer will be permitted to use, only the run-time 
executable code and associated support files of the Software for Customer’s internal data processing requirements as 
part of the Verity system.  The Software may be used only at the Licensed Location specified as the jurisdiction on the 
signature page of this Agreement and only on the hardware or other computer systems authorized by Hart in writing. 
Customer’s use of the Software will be limited to the number of licenses specified in the applicable quotation or as set 
forth in a Statement of Work executed as part of the Contract.  Only Customer and its authorized employees, agents or 
contractors may use or access the Software.  For applicable components, Voters are also authorized to interact with the 
Software, in a manner consistent with user instructions, for the sole purpose of producing a Cast Vote Record during the 
course of an election.  To the extent Hart Proprietary Software contains embedded third party software, third party 
licenses may apply.  Such embedded third party software is distinguished from “Sublicensed Software” which is stand-
alone software not part of Hart Proprietary Software.  See Exhibit B for a listing of Sublicensed Software, if any 

4.2. Records and Audit. Customer shall keep clear, complete and accurate books of account and records with respect to 
the usage of Software and access to the Software licensed hereunder, including without limitation with respect to access 
thereto.    Customer agrees that during the Term, Hart, the licensors of any Sublicensed Software, and their 
representatives may periodically inspect, conduct, and/or direct an independent accounting firm to conduct an audit, at 
mutually agreed-upon times during normal business hours, of the computer site, computer systems, and appropriate 
records of Customer to verify Customer’s compliance with the terms of the licenses and sublicenses granted to 
Customer. If any such examination discloses unauthorized usage, then Customer, shall make such payment then due, 
including appropriate historical payments without limiting Hart’s remedies.     

4.3. Restrictions.

4.3.1. The Hart Hardware and Hart Proprietary Software are designed to be used only with each other and/or the agreed-
upon Sublicensed Software (if any) and Third Party Hardware.  To protect the integrity and security of the Verity 
system, Customer shall comply with the following practices and shall not deviate from them without the express written 
consent of Hart: (i) Customer shall use the Software and Hardware only in connection with the Verity system, and 
Customer may only use Hart branded or approved peripherals and consumables with the Verity system.; (ii) Customer 
shall not install or use other software on or with the Hardware or Software or network the Hardware or Software with 
any other hardware, software, equipment, or computer systems; (iii) Customer shall not modify the Hardware or 
Software and (iv) Customer shall not attempt to access or derive any source code.  If Customer does not comply with 
any provisions of this Section 5.3, then (i) the Limited Warranties under Section [31] of the Contract and the licenses 
and sublicenses granted under Section 3.1 will automatically terminate; (ii) Hart may terminate its obligation to provide 
Software Support Services under the Contract; (iii) Hart will have no further installation obligations.  Furthermore, if 



CONTRACT #071B7700128

169 

Customer uses the Software and Hardware in combination with other software and equipment (other software or 
equipment being those not provided by Hart or its designees), and the combination infringes Hart proprietary patent 
claims outside the scope of the software license granted to Customer under Section 4.1, Hart reserves its rights to 
enforce its patents with respect to those claims. 

4.3.2. Customer shall not, under any circumstances, cause or permit the adaptation, conversion, reverse engineering, 
disassembly, or de-compilation of any Software.  Customer shall not use any Software for application development, 
modification, or customization purposes, except through Hart. 

4.3.3. Customer shall not assign, transfer, sublicense, time-share, or rent the Software or use it for facility management or 
as a service bureau serving others outside of the jurisdiction.  This restriction does not preclude or restrict Customer 
from contracting for election services for other local governments located within Customer’s jurisdictional boundaries.  
Customer shall not modify, copy, or duplicate the Software.  All use of software and hardware on which the software 
resides shall take place and be for activities within Customer’s jurisdictional boundaries, except for in cases of joint 
elections conducted cooperatively with neighboring jurisdictions. All copies of the Software, in whole or in part, must 
contain all of Hart’s or the third-party licensor’s titles, B, copyright notices, and other restrictive and proprietary notices
and legends (including government-restricted rights) as they appear on the copies of the Software provided to 
Customer.  Customer shall notify Hart of the following: (i) the location of all Software and all copies thereof and (ii) any 
circumstances known to Customer regarding any unauthorized possession or use of the Software. 

4.3.4. Customer shall not publish any results of benchmark tests run on any Software. 

4.3.5. The Software is not developed or licensed for use in any nuclear, aviation, mass transit, or medical application or in 
any other inherently dangerous applications.  Customer shall not use the Software in any inherently dangerous 
application and agrees that Hart and any third-party licensor will not be liable for any claims or damages arising from 
such use. 

5. DOCUMENTATION

Hart will provide Customer with one (1) electronic copy of the standard user-level documentation and operator’s manuals 
and where applicable, environmental specifications for the Product installed at the Customer’s location before the first 
election for which the Product will be used, following installation.  Customer may make unlimited hard copies for internal 
business purposes.   

6. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS 

6.1. Reservation of Rights. Customer acknowledges and agrees that the design of the Products, and any and all related 
patents, copyrights, trademarks, service marks, trade names, documents, logos, software, microcode, firmware, 
information, ideas, concepts, know-how, data processing techniques, documentation, diagrams, schematics, equipment 
architecture, improvements, bug fixes, updates, trade secrets and material are the property of Hart and its licensors.  
Customer agrees that the sale of the Hardware and license of the Software does not, other than as expressly set forth 
herein, grant to or vest in Customer any right, title, or interest in such proprietary property.  All patents, trademarks, 
copyrights, trade secrets, and other intellectual property rights, whether now owned or acquired by Hart with respect to 
the Products, are the sole and absolute property of Hart and its licensors. Customer shall not, under any circumstances, 
cause or permit the adaptation, conversion, reverse engineering, disassembly, or de-compilation of any Product(s), or 
copy, reproduce, modify, sell, license, or otherwise transfer any rights in any proprietary property of Hart.  Further 
Customer shall not remove any trademark, copyright, or other proprietary or restrictive notices contained on any Hart 
user documentation, operator’s manuals, and environmental specifications, and all copies will contain such notices as 
are on the original electronic media. All ideas, concepts, know-how, data processing techniques, documentation, 
diagrams, schematics, firmware, equipment architecture, software, improvements, bug fixes,  updates, and trade secrets 
developed by Hart personnel (alone or jointly with others, including Customer) in connection with Hart Confidential 
Information, Verity system, and Hart Proprietary Software will be the exclusive property of Hart.  For the purposes of this 
Agreement and the Contract, Hart Confidential Information includes, without limitation, all Software, the Documentation 
and support materials, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Contract. 

6.2. Customer Suggestions and Recommendations. Customer may propose, suggest, or recommend changes to the 
Products at any time.  For purposes of clarity, Hart agrees to make modifications required pursuant to Section 1.5 (D) in 
the Statement of Work in accordance with the Contract.  Such proposals, modifications, suggestions, or 
recommendations will become Hart’s property and are hereby assigned to Hart.  Hart may include any such proposals, 
modifications, suggestions, or recommendations, solely at Hart’s option, in subsequent periodic Product updates, without 



CONTRACT #071B7700128

170 

restriction or obligation. Subject to Section 1.5(D) in the Statement of Work, Hart is under no obligation to change, alter, 
or otherwise revise the Products according to Customer’s proposals, suggestions, or recommendations. 

6.3. License Back If Customer possesses or comes to possess a licensable or sub-licensable interest in any issued patent 
with claims that read upon the Verity system, its method of operation, or any component thereof, Customer hereby grants 
and promises to grant a perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, paid-up license, with right to sublicense, of such interest to 
Hart permitting Hart to make, have made, use, and sell materials or services within the scope of the patent claims, unless 
prohibited under Michigan law. 

7. SOFTWARE SUPPORT SERVICES

7.1. Description of Software Support Services.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Hart will provide 
Customer the Software Support Services described in Section 1.6 in the Statement of Work. Software Support Services 
under this Section do not cover any of the exclusions from warranty and support coverage as described under Section 
8.  If Hart, in its discretion, provides Software Support Services in addition to the services described under this Section, 
Customer will pay Hart for such services on a time-and-materials basis at Hart’s then-prevailing rates, plus expenses, 
and for replacements at Hart’s list prices, unless otherwise agreed in writing by Hart and Customer. 

8. WARRANTY

8.1. Limited Warranties.  The Hart Products carry the limited warranties set forth in Section [31] of the Contract, subject to 
any disclaimers or exclusions set forth therein. 

8.2. Exclusions from Warranty and Software Support Services.  The warranties under this Section and Software Support 
under Section 7 do not cover defects, errors, or malfunctions that are caused by any external causes, including, but not 
limited to, any of the following: (a) Customer’s failure to follow operational, support, or storage instructions as set forth 
in applicable documentation; (b) the use of incompatible media, supplies, parts, or components; (c) modification or 
alteration of the Verity system, or its components, by Customer or third parties not authorized by Hart; (d) use of 
equipment or software not supplied or authorized by Hart; (e) external factors (including, without limitation, power failure, 
surges or electrical damage, fire or water damage, air conditioning failure, humidity control failure, or corrosive 
atmosphere harmful to electronic circuitry); (f) failure to maintain proper site specifications and environmental conditions; 
(g) negligence, accidents, abuse, neglect, misuse, or tampering; (h) improper or abnormal use or use under abnormal 
conditions; (i) use in a manner not authorized by this Agreement or use inconsistent with Hart’s specifications and 
instructions; (j) use of software on Equipment that is not in good operating condition;; (l) servicing or support not 
authorized by Hart; or (m) Force Majeure. In any case where Hart Proprietary Software interfaces with third party 
software, including but not limited to, the Customer’s voter registration system, non-Hart election management system, 
early voting validation system, non-Hart election systems, absentee envelope management systems, or other like 
systems, Hart will not be responsible for proper operation of any Software that interfaces with the third party software 
should such third party software be updated, replaced, modified, or altered in any way.  Hart will also not be responsible 
for the proper operation of any Software running on Customer’s computer equipment, should Customer install a new 
computer operating system on said equipment without advising Hart of such changes and receiving Hart’s written 
approval. Hart will not be responsible for the proper operation of any Software should it be configured or operated in any 
manner contrary than that described herein. Professional Services and associated costs may be required in those 
situations where the Customer requests Hart’s review and approval of any system changes outside the original system 
specifications within this Contract. Hart reserves the right to charge for repairs on a time-and-materials basis at Hart’s 
then-prevailing rates, plus expenses, and for replacements at Hart’s list prices caused by these exclusions from warranty 
and support coverage. 

9. RESERVED.

10. CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES

10.1. Cooperation.  Customer agrees to cooperate with Hart and promptly perform Customer’s responsibilities hereunder for 
the purposes of facilitating customer service. Customer will (a) provide adequate working and storage space for use by 
Hart personnel near the applicable Hardware; (b) provide Hart full access to the Hardware and Software and sufficient 
computer time, subject to Customer’s security rules; (c) follow Hart’s procedures for placing hardware warranty or 
software support service requests and determining if warranty remedial service is required; (d) follow Hart’s instructions 
for obtaining hardware and software support and warranty services; (e) provide a memory dump and additional data in 
machine-readable form if requested; (f) reproduce suspected errors or malfunctions in Software; (g) provide timely 



CONTRACT #071B7700128

171 

access to key Customer personnel and timely respond to Hart’s questions; and (h) otherwise cooperate with Hart in its 
performance under this Agreement. 

10.2. Site Preparation.  Customer shall prepare and maintain the installation site in accordance with instructions provided by 
Hart.  Customer is responsible for environmental requirements, electrical interconnections, and modifications to facilities 
for proper installation, in accordance with Hart’s specifications.  Any delays in preparation of the installation site will 
correspondingly extend Hart’s delivery and installation deadlines. 

10.3. Site Maintenance; Proper Storage.  Customer shall maintain the appropriate operating environment, in accordance 
with Hart’s specifications, for the Products and all communications equipment, telephone lines, electric lines, cabling, 
modems, air conditioning, and all other equipment and utilities necessary for the Products to operate properly.  Customer 
shall properly store the Products when not in use. 

10.4. Use.  Customer is exclusively responsible for supervising, managing, and controlling its use of the Products, including, 
but not limited to, establishing operating procedures and audit controls, supervising its employees, making timely data 
backups, inputting data, ensuring the accuracy and security of data input and data output, monitoring the accuracy of 
information obtained, and managing the use of information and data obtained.  Customer will ensure that its personnel 
are, at all times, educated and trained in the proper use and operation of the Products and that the Hardware and 
Software are used in accordance with applicable manuals, instructions, and specifications.  Customer shall comply with 
all applicable laws, rules, and regulations with respect to its use of the Products. 

10.5. Backups.  Customer is solely responsible for timely data backups, and Customer will maintain backup data necessary 
to replace critical Customer data in the event of loss or damage to data from any cause. Hart is not liable for data loss. 

11. TERM AND TERMINATION

11.1. Term.

The term of this Agreement is 10 years from the date of purchase, and any extension thereof by the State or Authorized 
User.  .

11.2. Renewals. Authorized Users’ may renew License and Support Subscriptions for successive periods of one (1) year 
following the end of the Term upon mutual agreement of the parties.  In such event, the parties will mutually agree to an 
addendum to this Agreement with respect to the terms and conditions applicable to such renewal term(s). Customer 
must pay the Annual Fee invoiced by Hart for such renewals.  Each renewal License and Support Subscription term will 
be one (1) year, commencing on the expiration of the prior term and expiring on the immediately following anniversary 
date.

11.3. Effect of Expiration and Termination. Sections 4.2-4.3, 6, 8.2, 11.3, and 12-13 shall survive any termination or 
expiration of this Agreement.  All other rights and obligations (including licenses) shall be of no further force or effect. 

12. DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

12.1. Disclaimer of Warranty. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTIES APPLICABLE TO THE PRODUCT(S) 
AND/OR SERVICES REFERENCED IN SECTION 8 OF THIS AGREEMENT (WHICH REFERENCES SECTION 31 OF 
THE CONTRACT), TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, (A) THERE ARE NO 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, BY OPERATION OF LAW OR OTHERWISE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.  
FOR PURPOSES OF CLARITY, THE DISCLAIMERS SET FORTH IN SECTION 31(E) OF THE CONTRACT ALSO 
APPLY TO THIS AGREEMENT. 

12.2. Limitations of Liability.. THE LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY SET FORTH IN SECTION 25 OF THE CONTRACT APPLY 
TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ARE HEREBY INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE HEREIN.  FOR PURPOSES OF 
CLARITY, CLAIMS OF ANY KIND (WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, INDEMNITY, WARRANTY, TORT, STRICT 
LIABILITY OR OTHWERWISE MADE OR ALLEGED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE DEEMED TO BE CLAIMS 
UNDER THE CONTRACT (AND CLAIMS OF ANY KIND UNDER THE CONTRACT WILL BE DEEMED TO BE CLAIMS 
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT) AND PAYMENTS WITH RESPECT THERETO WILL COUNT TOWARD A PARTY’S 
MAXIMUM AGGREGATE LIABILITY UNDER THIS SECTION 12.2 AND SECTION 25 OF THE CONTRACT. THE 
PARTIES AGREE THAT THE LIABILITY AND WARRANTY LIMITATIONS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT AND 
THE CONTRACT ARE A REASONABLE ALLOCATION OF RISK AND LIABILITY CONSIDERING THE RESPECTIVE 



CONTRACT #071B7700128

172 

BENEFITS OBTAINED HEREUNDER.  THE FOREGOING LIMITATIONS SHALL APPLY NOTWITHSTANDING THE 
FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY LIMITED REMEDY HEREIN. 

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS

13.1. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is considered Schedule B of the Contract, and it, along with all other Schedules, 
Exhibits and Attachments to the Contract are the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter 
contemplated herein, and supersede all prior negotiations and oral agreements with respect thereto.  Hart makes no 
representations or warranties with respect to this Agreement or its Products or Services that are not included herein. 
The use of preprinted Customer forms, such as purchase orders or acknowledgments, in connection with this Agreement 
is for convenience only and all preprinted terms and conditions stated thereon are void and of no effect.  If any conflict 
exists between this Agreement, the Contract and any terms and conditions on a Customer purchase order, 
acknowledgment, or other Customer preprinted form, the terms and conditions of the Contract will govern; provided that 
Sections 4 and 6 of this Agreement will govern in the event of any such conflict. This Agreement may not be amended 
or waived except in writing signed by an officer of the party to be bound thereby. 

13.2. Interpretation.  This Agreement will be construed according to its fair meaning and not for or against either party.  
Headings are for reference purposes only and are not to be used in construing the Agreement.  All words and phrases 
in this Agreement are to be construed to include the singular or plural number and the masculine, feminine, or neuter 
gender as the context requires. 

13.3. GOVERNING LAW.  THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, 
WITHOUT REGARD TO ITS CONFLICT OF LAW PROVISIONS. 

13.4. Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement will be interpreted to be effective and valid under 
applicable law; but if any provision is found to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, then such provision or portion thereof 
will be modified to the extent necessary to render it legal, valid, and enforceable and have the intent and economic effect 
as close as possible to the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision. If it is not possible to modify the provision to render 
it legal, valid, and enforceable, then the provision will be severed from the rest of the Agreement and ignored.  The 
invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision will not affect the validity, legality, or enforceability of any other
provision of this Agreement, which will remain valid and binding. 

13.5. Compliance with Laws. Customer and Hart shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws in the performance of 
this Agreement, including those governing use of the Products. Products provided under this Agreement may be subject 
to U.S. and other government export control regulations.  Customer shall not export or re-export any Products. 

13.6. Trademarks.  Verity Election Office™, Verity Voting™, Verity Scan™, Verity Touch™, Verity Controller™, Verity 
Access™, Verity vDrive™, Verity Touch Writer™, Verity Ballot™, Verity Layout™, Verity Build™, Verity Count™, Verity 
Relay™, Verity Key™, and Verity Central™, and such other Product names indicated as trademarked names of Hart 
are trademarks of Hart. 



CONTRACT #071B7700128

173 

Exhibit A 

Definitions 

 “Hart” means Hart InterCivic, Inc., a Texas corporation. 

 “Verity Access™” means the audio tactile interface (ATI) CONTROLLER created by Hart as an add-on component to a 
Verity Touch™ that facilitates the performance of voting activities by disabled voters, for example, by providing an audio ballot 
presentation and/or accepting inputs from adaptive switch mechanisms that facilitate interaction with disabled voters, as 
needed. 

“Verity Print™” means the device created by Hart for purposes of on-demand ballot printing; this device creates a 
blank paper ballot from the poll worker’s selection of the voter’s ballot style or precinct on the Verity Print interface.  

“Verity Controller™” is a polling place management console capable of interacting with one or more Verity Touch™
devices by transmitting and receiving signals that manage an election, e.g., by opening and closing the polls, providing or 
recording an audit trail of system events during an election, storing cast ballot data, and applying data security and integrity
algorithms.

“Verity Scan™” means the Verity Scan™ device created by Hart, consisting of an in-person digital ballot imaging 
device.  The single-feed scanner transports and scans both sides of a ballot simultaneously, and it is securely attached to a 
ballot box that provides for secure ballot storage and transport. 

“Verity Election Office” means Hart InterCivic’s software platform that can accommodate a variety of election 
administration applications and is designed for interoperability with Verity Voting Hardware and Software. 

“Verity Touch™” means the Verity Touch™ electronic voting device created by Hart.  Verity Touch devices consist of 
hardware including an electronically configurable voting station that permits a voter to cast votes by direct interaction, which
voting station in its present configuration created by Hart comprises an electronically configurable touchscreen liquid crystal
display (LCD) panel for use in displaying ballot images, and options for tactile input buttons that facilitate voter options for
selecting ballot choices and casting a ballot. 

“Verity Touch Writer™” means the device created by Hart for ballot-marking functions.  Touch Writer creates a paper 
marked ballot from the voter’s selections on the electronic interface or the Verity Access ATI controller.  

"Verity Voting" means Hart InterCivic's family of voting system components designed to conform to federal voting 
system standards.   

(The rest of this page has been intentionally left blank.)



CONTRACT #071B7700128

174 

Exhibit B 

HART PROPRIETARY AND SUBLICENSED SOFTWARE 

Hart Proprietary Software Licensed to Customer via annual subscription: 

ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION NUMBER OF LICENSES 
   
   
   
   
   
   

Licensed Location is the jurisdiction named on the signature page of this Agreement. 

Software Sublicensed to Customer via annual subscription: 

None 

(The rest of this page has been intentionally left blank.)



$25,000.00Grand Total

Ypsilanti Charter Township, MIAccount Name

00002937Quote Number 

 

Confidential - Not for Redistribution

 

Special Discount provided above reflects a $500.00 discount on the unit price of Verity Scan, resulting in a unit price of
$5,000.00. 

Annual Service & Maintenance Discount provided above reflects a $140.00 discount on the unit price of Verity Scan
Service and Maintenance for years 
6-10 and a $135.00 discount on the unit price of Verity Touch Writer w/ Access Service and Maintenance for years 6-10. 
The resulting unit prices are as follows: 
- Service and Maintenance – Verity Scan: $424.00 
- Service and Maintenance – Verity Touch Writer w/ Access: $380.00 

Hart will provide a 10% discount on Annual Service & Maintenance for years 6-10 if customer pays in full before the start
date of year 5 (to be determined based on ship date; estimated deadline is July 2021). The resulting annual unit prices

Please fax with signature to or scan and email to
 to order.kclakeley@hartic.com

Instructions

Net 30Payment Terms

7/8/2017Expiration Date

(734) 484-4700Phone

lgarrett@ytown.orgEmailLisa GarrettContact Name

7200 S Huron River Dr.
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Ship To7200 S Huron River Dr.
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Bill To

$16,768.00Grand Total Annual Service & Maintenance

($5,670.00)Annual Service & Maintenance Discount

$22,438.00Total Annual Service & Maintenance

$25,000.00Grand Total

($2,500.00)Special Discount

$27,500.00Subtotal

Item Description Unit Price Quantity Total Price

Verity Scan Digital ballot scanner with remote transmission capability $5,500.00 5 $27,500.00

Annual Service and Maintenance (Years 6-10)

Item Description
Unit

Price
Quantity Total Price

Service and Maintenance - Verity Scan
Annual Service and Maintenance fee for Verity Scan in years
6-10

$564.00 27 $15,228.00

Service and Maintenance - Verity Touch
Writer w/ Access

Annual Service and Maintenance fee for Verity Touch Writer w/
Access in years 6-10

$515.00 14 $7,210.00

Customer Contact

General Information

Terms and Conditions



$25,000.00Grand Total

Ypsilanti Charter Township, MIAccount Name

00002937Quote Number 

 

Confidential - Not for Redistribution

 

Title: ________________________________________________

Date: ________________________________________________

 

Name: ______________________________________________

Customer Approval: ____________________________________

Director, Strategic AccountsTitle

Signature

Karen ClakeleyPrepared By

with this discount are: 
- Service and Maintenance – Verity Scan: $381.60 
- Service and Maintenance – Verity Touch Writer w/ Access: $342.00

Hart Approval

Customer Approval



 1 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION 2017-14 
 

Authorizing the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
to Exercise its “First Right of Refusal” and to 
Purchase from Washtenaw County Treasurer 
Catherine McClary Acting in her Capacity as  

the Foreclosing Governmental Unit Under the 
Authority of the General Property Tax Act the 

Real Properties Described Herein Located  
In Ypsilanti Township, Michigan 

 
  
  WHEREAS, on or about March 31, 2017  Washtenaw County 

Treasurer Catherine McClary, Acting in her capacity as the Foreclosing 

Governmental Unit (FGU) under the Authority of the General Property 

Tax Act (GPTA) foreclosed upon certain properties in the Washtenaw 

County Circuit Court due to delinquent real property taxes.   

The “List of Tax Foreclosed Properties” for 2017 last revised on  

May 10, 2017 (See Exhibit 1) was received by Ypsilanti Township Clerk 

Karen Lovejoy Roe from Washtenaw County Treasurer McClary which 

contained inter alia the following Ypsilanti Township properties which set 

forth the amount of unpaid delinquent taxes and are described as follows:  

 1. 1636 Bailey St. 
 Parcel No.:   K-11-02-308-020 
 Minimum Bid:  $10,642.00 
 Legal Description: 

YP #76-150 Lot 150 Lay Garden Subdivision 
 

 
 2.  1212 E. Clark Road 
 Parcel No.:   K-11-03-128-008 
 Minimum Bid:  $20,434.00 
 Legal Description: 

YP#133-13 W 15.15’ Lot 100 & E 34.85’ Lot 101 Washtenaw 
Concourse No.2 

 
 3.  679 Calder Ave. 

 Parcel No.:   K-11-11-435-017 
 Minimum Bid:  $12,645.00 
 Legal Description: 

YP# 90-21 Lot 388 South Devonshire Subdivision No. 2. 679 
Caider 
 



 2 

 WHEREAS, the Court of Appeals for the State of Michigan in an 

unanimous decision released for publication on April 5, 2011 entitled   

“City of Bay City vs Bay County Treasurer” held that under the GPTA 

that “. . . the determination of a proper purpose for the purchase of  

tax-delinquent property is a legislative function, vesting such 

determinations as arose in this case with Plaintiff’s council. 

Furthermore, because MCL 211.78(m)(1) creates a mandatory legal 

duty on Defendant’s part to sell the property to Plaintiff granting him 

no discretion to decide not to sale such property, the statute does not 

empower a county treasurer . . . to make an independent 

determination as to a municipality’s professed ‘public’ purpose” a 

copy of the Court of Appeals decision being attached hereto and 

incorporated by reference and labeled Exhibit 2;  and 

WHEREAS, from 2007 through 2016 Ypsilanti Township has 

seen over 3,000 foreclosures which make up approximately thirty-three 

(33%) of all foreclosures that have occurred during this time period in 

Washtenaw County even though the Township’s population is only fifteen 

(15%) of the County’s total population; and 

  WHEREAS, this unprecedented record number of 

foreclosures in Ypsilanti Township resulted in a significant loss of tax 

revenue to the Township while also having a direct and negative effect 

upon the residential property values Township wide; and  

  WHEREAS, this record number of foreclosures in the 

Township destabilized a number of residential streets located within the 

Township’s residential subdivisions and greatly contributed to a number of 

residential neighborhoods becoming predominantly rental properties which 

further contributed to the destabilization of residential properties; and   

  WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti in an effort to  

stabilize the Township’s existing residential neighborhoods entered into a  

partnership with Habitat for Humanity for acquiring and rehabilitating 



 3 

residential properties located in the Township for homeowner occupancy 

which has resulted in increased neighborhood stabilization and has 

prevented further deterioration of existing residential subdivisions 

throughout the Township while also resulting in the increase of property 

values and the tax base in the Township; and 

  WHEREAS, Habitat has notified the Township of its desire to 

acquire additional residential properties in the Township for rehabilitation 

and resale to homeowners which further promotes the Township’s Board 

stated policy of neighborhood stabilization; and 

  WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees has 

determined and hereby finds that the exercise of its “First Right of 

Refusal” to acquire the above listed properties constitutes a “Public 

Purpose” as set forth in the Court of Appeals case entitled  

“City of Bay City vs Bay County Treasurer” since it is imperative that in 

order for the Township to achieve its stated public purpose of 

neighborhood stabilization and to prevent further deterioration of 

residential property values that the Township continues in its ongoing 

efforts with Habitat for Humanity to increase homeownership by acquiring 

residential properties in the Township for resale to Habitat who will 

rehabilitate said properties that in turn will be resold to persons for 

homeownership as opposed to being utilized as rental/investment 

properties; and  

 WHEREAS, the Township has been advised by the Washtenaw 

County Treasurer’s Office that the minimum bid price for all of the above 

listed properties total $43,721.00; 

 NOW, THEREFORE THE YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

 1. That the Township hereby finds and determines that the 

exercise of its “First Right of Refusal” pursuant to the General Property 

Tax Act as further defined in the Court of Appeals case entitled  



 4 

“City of Bay City vs Bay County Treasurer” to purchase the properties 

hereinabove listed located in the Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw 

County, State of Michigan, constitutes a “Public Purpose” since it is 

imperative that in order for the Township to achieve its stated public 

purpose of neighborhood stabilization and to prevent further deterioration 

of residential property values that the Township continues in its ongoing 

efforts with Habitat for Humanity to increase homeownership by acquiring 

residential properties in the Township for resale to Habitat who will 

rehabilitate said properties that in turn will be resold to persons for 

homeownership as opposed to being utilized as rental/investment 

properties. 

 2. That the Township hereby notifies Washtenaw County 

Treasurer Catherine McClary Acting in her Capacity as the Foreclosing 

Governmental Unit that the Township desires to purchase the above listed 

properties under the Township’s “First Right of Refusal” for the minimum 

bid of each property which totals $43,721.00.    

  3. That the Township authorizes the payment of $43,721.00 for 

the purpose of acquiring the above listed properties pursuant to the 

Township’s “First Right of Refusal” for the “Public Purpose” as defined 

herein. 



** Per Michigan Constitution, assessed value shall not exceed 50% of true cash value (Article 9, Section 3).
*** Includes all delinquent taxes, interest, penalties, fees, costs, and expenses.

REVISED 5/10/2017
Page 1

Phone: 734-222-6600
Fax: 734-222-6632

Email: taxes@ewashtenaw.org

Parcel 
Identification 

Number

Address and 
Municipality Auction Date 2017 Assessed 

Value x 2**
Minimum 

Bid*** Legal Description

http://www.auction.com/washtenaw

List of Tax Foreclosed Properties
Auctions will start on 7/21, 8/25, 9/29, & 11/3/2017

   Washtenaw County, Michigan                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Please Note: The Treasurer has the right to withdraw any property on this list prior to the auction. Please contact the office for up to date information. 

All bidding is done online. Please read the terms and conditions before bidding. 
All attempts were made for accuracy and proof-reading. Please report any errors you may find to taxes@ewashtenaw.org

Catherine McClary, CPFO, CPFIM
Washtenaw County Treasurer

K -11-01-100-018

1236 Ridge Rd
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $91,200 $16,279

YP#1-14B COM AT N 1/4 POST OF SEC, TH S 00 DEG 19' W 1251.92 FT IN N&S 1/4 LINE FOR A PL OFBEG, 
TH S 00 DEG 19' W 109.98 FT IN N&S 1/4 LINE, TH N 88 DEG 07' E  200.00 FT TH S 00 DEG 19' W 50 FT, TH 
N 88 DEG 07' E 1160.51 FT TO THE E LINE   OF W FRL 1/2 OF NE FRL 1/4, TH N 1 DEG 35' E 160.18 FT IN 
THE E LINE OF W FRL   1/2 OF NE FRL 1/4, TH S 88 DEG 09' W 1364.01 FT TO THE PL OF BEG, BEING A 
PART  OF W FRL 1/2 OF NE FRL 1/4 SEC. 1 T3S R7E 4.77 AC.

K -11-02-307-021

1636 Holmes Rd
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $13,200 $5,573 YP#76-162 LOT 162 & LOT 163 LAY GARDEN SUBDIVISION.

K -11-02-308-020

1636 Bailey St
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $35,600 $10,642 YP#76-150 LOT 150 LAY GARDEN SUBDIVISION.

K -11-02-406-003

Holmes Rd
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $8,200 $1,614 YP# 67-82 LOT 82 GROVE PARK SUB'D.

K -11-03-128-008

1212 E Clark Rd
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $50,000 $20,434 YP#133-13 W 15.15' LOT 100 & E 34.85' LOT 101 WASHTENAW CONCOURSE NO 2.

K -11-07-160-011

271 N Hewitt Rd
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $35,200 $8,463 YP#102-388 LOT 389 WASHTENAW CLUB VIEW SUBDIVISION.

K -11-10-380-021

923 Ecorse Rd
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

8/25/2017 $145,600 $35,098 YP# 93-51 LOTS 184 & 187 STURTEVANT MANOR SUBDIVISION NO. 1.

K -11-11-435-017

679 Calder Ave
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $43,000 $12,645 YP# 90-21 LOT 388 SOUTH DEVONSHIRE SUBDIVISION NO. 2. 679 CAIDER

K -11-13-352-015
K -11-13-352-016

Watson St
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $54,000 $10,212 YP#104-1507: LOTS 1827 - 1832 INCL. WATSONIA PARK SUBDIVISION.
YP#104-1506: LOT 1826 WATSONIA PARK SUBDIVISION.



** Per Michigan Constitution, assessed value shall not exceed 50% of true cash value (Article 9, Section 3).
*** Includes all delinquent taxes, interest, penalties, fees, costs, and expenses.

REVISED 5/10/2017
Page 2

Phone: 734-222-6600
Fax: 734-222-6632

Email: taxes@ewashtenaw.org

Parcel 
Identification 

Number

Address and 
Municipality Auction Date 2017 Assessed 

Value x 2**
Minimum 

Bid*** Legal Description

http://www.auction.com/washtenaw

List of Tax Foreclosed Properties
Auctions will start on 7/21, 8/25, 9/29, & 11/3/2017

   Washtenaw County, Michigan                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Please Note: The Treasurer has the right to withdraw any property on this list prior to the auction. Please contact the office for up to date information. 

All bidding is done online. Please read the terms and conditions before bidding. 
All attempts were made for accuracy and proof-reading. Please report any errors you may find to taxes@ewashtenaw.org

Catherine McClary, CPFO, CPFIM
Washtenaw County Treasurer

K -11-14-284-010

1417 Gattegno St
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $10,000 $3,656 YP#110H-63 LOT 685 WESTWILLOW UNIT NINE.

K -11-24-240-018

2572 Hearthside Dr
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

8/25/2017 $15,600 $6,400 YP# 69A-40 LOT 40 HURON HEARTHSIDES SUB.

K -11-24-242-025

2404 Lakeview Ave
Ypsilanti, MI 48198

Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti

7/21/2017 $27,800 $5,205
YP# 69A-21B: LOT 20, EXCEPT THE W 65.0 FT, ALSO W 4 FT OF LOT 21 AND N 1/2 OF   VACATED 
ALLEYHURON HEARTHSIDES SUB. SPLIT ON 07/24/2012 WITH K -11-24-242-024   INTO K -11-24-242-025, K -
11-24-242-026;





















 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI 

 
RESOLUTION 2017-15 

 
Abandoned Tax Delinquent Property 

 
 

Whereas, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
determined that parcels of abandoned tax delinquent property exist; and 

 
Whereas, abandoned tax delinquent property contributes to crime, blight, and 
decay with Ypsilanti Township; and 

 
Whereas, the certification of tax delinquent abandoned property as certified 
abandoned property will result in the accelerated forfeiture and foreclosure of 
certified abandoned property under the general property tax act and return 
abandoned property to productive use more rapidly, therefore reducing crime, 
blight, and decay within Ypsilanti Township. 

 
Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees hereby notifies residents and owners of property within 
Ypsilanti Township that abandoned tax delinquent property will be identified 
and inspected; and may be certified abandoned property subject to 
accelerated forfeiture and foreclosure under the general property tax act. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Mike Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Request to authorize litigation (if necessary) to abate property maintenance 
public nuisances located at 1659 Wismer St, 100 N Clubview, 881 Dons Dr, 553 
Kansas, 1137 Nash and 1814 Carol Ann; funding is available in Nuisance 
Abatement Legal Services account 101-950.000-801.023 in an amount of 
$60,000. 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters 
 

Date:  June 13, 2017 
 
The Office of Community Standards has completed investigations of public nuisance activities at 
the following locations and requests authorization to engage in legal action to abate the 
nuisances if necessary. 
 
1659 Wismer St 
This certified rental property in the Sugarbrook neighborhood has been the subject of 
complaints from neighbors and tenants indicating the landlord is operated it as a rooming 
house in violation of residential zoning regulations.  The information was verified during a 
parole compliance check conducted by the Michigan Department of Corrections and the 
Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office.  The property owners are listed as Peter A. Jordan and 
Brent LeBlanc; the person with whom Township inspectors have had regular contact 
representing himself as the landlord for the past 9 years is also known as Peter Jordan.  As a 
result of an investigation, it was determined that various tenants, many of whom are transient 
renters, live or have lived at the house at various times renting rooms in violation of Township 
zoning code.  The zoning code does not permit use of single family dwellings as rooming 
houses.  OCS staff attempted to resolve this issue last year with the person representing himself 
to be the landlord, who provided staff with a copy of a newly executed lease signed by him and 
four tenants.  Since then, new tenants have moved in and out and have provided staff with 
copies of different leases constructed to rent individual rooms.  Administrative approval was 
granted to initiate litigation to abate this nuisance, the lawsuit has been filed and is in the court 
process. 
 
100 N Culbview Dr 
This owner occupied single family home was condemned on February 21, 2017 when OCS staff 
responded there to assist the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office and fire/EMS personnel on a 
routine welfare check.  Emergency responders entered the home under exigent circumstances 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

and provided aid to the occupant, Brenda Sims, who was found in a back room.  Police and 
medical personnel had to climb and maneuver over an extraordinary amount of trash and other 
obstacles, some of which was piled to the ceiling in parts of the home.  Since then, Ordinance 
Administrator Bill Elling has made numerous unsuccessful attempts to convince the 
homeowner to cooperate with family members and community volunteer groups who offered 
to help clean out the house at no cost.  All of those efforts ultimately failed due to lack of 
cooperation by the homeowner.  The house remains condemned in a hazardous condition due 
to severe fire load code violations, as well as other sanitation and plumbing violations. 
 
881 Dons Dr 
This single family vacant house located in a B-3 commercial district off E. Michigan Ave was 
condemned on May 15, 2017 after it was inspected by OCS staff using an administrative 
warrant.  The house was found to have a hole in the roof, a collapsed breezeway, and other 
structural code violations.  In addition, the grass and exterior property has been neglected.  The 
property is owned by the estate of the late Raymond Kalusha and was most recently under 
control of a surviving son, Wesley Kalusha, who was known to have lived there.  Efforts to hold 
the son responsible to abate the nuisance through district court were unsuccessful after he 
failed to appear for a hearing and ignored the citation. 
 
553 Kansas Ave 
This single family house was reported vacant for more than three years by neighbors who have 
observed wild animals entering through a hole in the roof.  The OCS investigation determined 
that one of the owners, Thomas Dewitt, pass away in 2008; the other owner, Linda Dewitt, has 
not been located.  OCS staff inspected the house using an administrative warrant on May 30, 
2017 and subsequently condemned it.  There are holes in the roof, the interior is mold and 
water damaged, and the exterior is blighted and has dilapidated accessory structures.  This 
house is an eyesore and attractive public nuisance in an otherwise well maintained 
neighborhood. 
 
1137 Nash Ave 
This single family house was foreclosed upon by US Bank National Association on September 
29, 2016 and remained occupied until March 14, 2017.  On that date, OCS staff assisted 
deputies from the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office investigating a breaking and entering at 
the house and learned that the previous owner was deceased and the house was now vacant.  
OCS staff also had several doors and windows secured.  OCS staff followed up with US Bank, 
which failed to register the vacant property as required by code.  An inspection was conducted 
on May 15, 2017 using an administrative warrant and the certificate of occupancy was revoked 
due to fire load and sanitation violations. 
 
1814 Carol Ann Ave 
This single family home is occupied by its owners, Wallace and Phyllis Miller, and has been 
under code enforcement since January 15, 2016.  It was brought to the attention of OCS staff 
during a rental inspection across the street when broken and missing windows covered with 
blankets were pointed out by a concerned neighbor.  The subsequent and ongoing investigation 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

by OCS staff determined that the house lacked an operable furnace, had no airtight windows, 
and had fire load, sanitation and a variety of electrical, plumbing and mechanical code 
violations.  OCS staff has worked with the property owners in an effort to assist them in 
correcting code violations in order to avoid physical displacement.  Habitat for Humanity was 
involved and has exhausted their efforts to assist.  OCS staff have also exhausted all efforts to 
obtain voluntary compliance short of displacing the homeowners.  The condition of the house 
and lack of substantial code compliance now dictate legal action is necessary for the welfare of 
the occupants and the general public. 
 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  Please contact me with questions or concerns. 
 
 
Regards, 
 

Michael J. Radzik 

Director, Office of Community Standards 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Mike Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Request to authorize litigation to abate narcotics public nuisances by 
padlocking properties located at 2357 Ravinewood Ave, 1645 Dorothy St and 
555 East Grand Blvd; funding is available in Nuisance Abatement Legal Services 
account 101-950.000-801.023 in an amount of $30,000. 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters; Lt. Mike Marocco 
 

Date:  June 9, 2017 
 
The Office of Community Standards and the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office have completed 
investigations of public nuisance activities at the following locations and requests authorization 
to engage in legal action to abate the nuisances. 
 
2357 Ravinewood Ave 
On April 27, 2017, the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office executed a search warrant at 2357 
Ravinewood Ave as part of a narcotics trafficking investigation.  This rental property owned by 
Daniel Novak of Tipton, MI had previously been investigated under similar circumstances in 
2014 and the property owner had been placed on notice.  Administrative approval was granted 
to initiate litigation pursuant to Chapter 38 of the Revised Judicature Act of 1961 seeking to 
padlock the house for a period of one year.  This lawsuit has been filed and is in the court 
process. 
 
1645 Dorothy St 
On April 12, 2017, the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office executed a search warrant and 
subsequently completed an investigation of reported prostitution and narcotics activity at 1645 
Dorothy St.  The investigation was in response to numerous and ongoing complaints from many 
sources within the Sugarbrook neighborhood.  The investigation led to a criminal conviction of 
the property owner, James Lefleur, for maintaining a drug house on May 9, 2017.  During his 
guilty plea to the criminal charge, Mr. Fefleur admitted that heroin was transacted on the 
premises.  In addition, the investigation substantiated allegations that the owner permitted a 
woman to stay at the house where she regularly engaged in prostitution activity with various 
people on the premises.  Administrative approval was granted to initiate litigation pursuant to 
Chapter 38 of the Revised Judicature Act of 1961 seeking to padlock the house for a period of 
one year.  This lawsuit has been filed and is in the court process. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

555 East Grand Blvd 
On May 24, 2017, the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Office CAT Team, assisted by the Michigan 
State Police LAWNET and RHINO narcotics teams, executed a search warrant at this owner 
occupied home on East Grand Blvd near Forest Ave.  One known family member of the owner, 
Geneva Parham, living at the house was a fugitive wanted on a felony drug warrant.  The 
investigation followed a recent heroin overdose death at the location and substantiated 
neighborhood tips of narcotics use, trafficking and manufacturing at the property.  During the 
raid police seized various quantities of illegal drugs and, more importantly, when officers 
entered the home they encountered active methamphetamine manufacturing in progress.  The 
clandestine manufacturing of methamphetamine is a highly volatile and dangerous chemical 
environment that can cause physical harm and is prone to explosion.  Police officers and civilian 
occupants at the house were evacuated while a specialized police team was summoned to the 
scene to safely dismantle and neutralize the meth lab.  Two small children located inside the 
house were transported to a hospital for medical evaluation due to exposure to fumes from the 
meth lab environment, and child protective services was notified.  Township OCS staff assisted 
police and condemned the house for environmental safety and other code violations.  
Authorization is requested to engage in legal action to abate this dangerous public nuisance 
and to seek a padlock order pursuant to Chapter 38 of the Revised Judicature Act of 1961. 
 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  Please contact me with questions or concerns. 
 
 
Regards, 
 

Michael J. Radzik 

Director, Office of Community Standards 



Charter <Township of 
�:-=V 

<Ypsifanti 
"!Pfacing 'R§sitfents Pirst" 

Office (734) 544-4225 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

222 SOUTH FORD BOULEY ARD 

YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 48198-6067 

Fire Chief (734) 544-4110 
Fire Marshal (734) 544-4107 
Fax (734) 544-4195 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

MEMORANDUM 

Chmier Township of Ypsilanti Trustees 

Ypsilanti Township Fire Chief Eric Copeland 

June 13, 2017 

Authorization to accept OHM proposal to provide detailed engineering services related to 
replacement of the existing concrete parking lot at Fire Headquarters station located at 222 
S. Ford Blvd.

Attached is the OHM proposal to provide professional engineering services to YTFD at the 
fire station located at 222 S. Ford Blvd for replacement of existing concrete parking lot, 
curbs and driveways including design and construction services. The proposed services 
include project scope, deliverables, schedule, fee estimation and assumptions. 

The total fee estimate is not to exceed $8,500.00 not including the Optional Task lA. 
Adding Option Task lA the fee estimate is not to exceed $9,350.00. See attachment pg.3. 

I recommend acceptance of OHM proposal including Option Task lA, to determine the 
condition of the existing materials and sub base with core samples, for an amount not to 
exceed $9350.00. 

An amendment to the 2017 Fire Fund budget from line item 206-970-000-976-005 Prior 
Year Balance is required to fund the OHM proposal. 

ERC 



 
 
 

 

June 12, 2017 
 
 
Ms. Brenda Stumbo 
Township Supervisor 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
RE: Ford Boulevard Fire Station Parking Lot Improvements  
 Proposal for Design and Construction Services 
 
 
Dear Ms. Stumbo: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide professional engineering services for the 
Township.  The Township Fire Station located at 222 South Ford Boulevard is in need of extensive concrete repairs 
to remedy the current deterioration and to prevent future degradation. The replacement of the existing concrete will 
provide the Fire Station a reliable driveway surface for future operations.  In this proposal, we have outlined the 
scope and clarifications necessary to seek bids for the Township to address the concrete issues.   
 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 
The project consists of reconstructing and/or rehabilitating the existing concrete parking lot, driveways, and curb 
for the Fire Station. Based on an evaluation of deterioration of specific areas and the budget, sections of the concrete 
shall be selected to be removed and re-constructed  The concrete surfaces will comply with the Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti Engineering Standards and Design Specifications, as well as the Washtenaw County Road Commission 
for work completed in the Ford Blvd Right-of-Way.  
 
This proposal outlines information for project scope, deliverables, schedule, fee estimation and assumptions.   
 
SCOPE 
 
Task 1 – Site Visit and Field Measurement 
OHM will be assigned a single point of contact for this project and will meet that representative at the Fire Station 
to define scope, finalize removal and replacement limits and develop preliminary quantities for a preliminary 
engineering opinion of probable cost.  This project will only consist of concrete driveway and parking lot work.  
Improvements internal to the garage, asphalt pavement, roadway, building, landscape, etc. is not included.  Grading 
and restoration within 10-feet of either side of the proposed construction is included in this scope of work and will 
be considered in development of the preliminary estimate.  During this site visit, the concrete will be evaluated and 
sections will be decided for removal and replacement. 
 
Task 1A – Pavement Cores (Optional) 
Prior to the evaluation and selection of areas of concrete to be removed, OHM Advisors recommends cores of the 
pavement taken to determine the existing materials on site and subbase condition. Cores taken would provide a 
better understanding of the specific depths and status of layers. This insight would allow a more accurate scope of 
areas that would require removal, replacement, and appropriate technique. 



Ms. Brenda Stumbo – Ford Blvd Fire Station Parking Lot Improvements Proposal 
June 12, 2017  
Page 2 of 4 

 
Task 2 – Preliminary Concept Drawing 
From the data gathered from Task 1 and optional Task 1A, a set of design drawings and aerial maps will be developed 
showing the limits of removal and concrete installation locations.  Notes and details needed for specific design 
elements as well as concrete areas will also be completed.  This will serve as the “plans” for the project and help 
contractors to understand the overall scope of work. A review meeting will be held with the Township to discuss 
the scope, plan, and estimate.  A phasing plan would also be developed on these plans to help ensure access for 
emergency vehicles is not interrupted during construction.  Based on feedback, we will revise and incorporate the 
drawings into the bid package.   
 
Task 3 – Specifications and Bid Package Assembly 
OHM will develop specifications in conformance with the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Engineering Standards 
and design specifications.  The specifications will address special instructions to bidders, supplemental specifications 
and outline a method of payment for the contractor to follow.  The bid package will require the necessary bonding, 
prevailing wage information and insurance requirements as well as include a bid form that will allow the Township 
to compare bids on.  Once complete, the Township will be provided with two hard copies of the package for review 
along with an updated final engineer’s opinion of probable cost.  Final adjustments to the package will then be made 
prior to advertising and bidding.  
 
Task 4 – Bidding 
The final bid package will be advertised by OHM and bid through MITN and posted by the Township.  OHM will 
conduct the bid process.  OHM can also hold an onsite pre-bid conference with potential bidders if requested by 
the Township and if the schedule allows.  OHM will address any questions and/or any RFI’s received by the bidding 
contractors during the bid phase.  OHM will hold a bid opening at the Township on the date specified.  Bids will be 
received, read aloud, collected, tabulated, and reviewed.  A letter recommending which contractor would be best 
suited to construct the project will be provided. 
 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES TASKS: 
Based on the design scope, a separate CE Services proposal can be provided at a later date. 
 
DELIVERABLES 
 
Task Deliverable 
Task 1A (Optional) Pavement Cores to determine cross-section 
Task 2 Preliminary Conceptual Alignment on Aerial Map and preliminary opinion of probable cost 
Task 3 Final drawing, specifications and bid package for review. 
Task 4 Two copies of Final Plans and Bidding Documents 
  

ASSUMPTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS 
 

� An inspection, with fire station staff, of existing concrete will be conducted and quantified. 
� A meeting will be held with the Township to confirm the budget and scope after inspection. 
� All other tasks added to the scope below can be conducted at an hourly rate or as negotiated between the 

Township and OHM Advisors (OHM).  Additional work will not be conducted prior to Township 
Authorization. 

� Any meetings in addition to the meetings outlined in the above scope are not included in the scope of 
services. 

 
  



Ms. Brenda Stumbo – Ford Blvd Fire Station Parking Lot Improvements Proposal 
June 12, 2017  
Page 3 of 4 

FEE 
 
OHM Advisors will invoice the Charter Township of Ypsilanti for the above stated services on a monthly basis.  
 
Design Tasks Design Fee  
Task 1  $2,900.00  
Task 1A (Optional) $850.00 * 
Task 2 $1,800.00  
Task 3 $3,000.00  
Task 4 $720.00  

 
The total fee is estimated to be $8,500.00.  Note this doesn’t include the Optional Task 1A.  The total of all tasks, 
including the Optional Task 1A as outlined is $9,350.00.   
 
  



Ms. Brenda Stumbo – Ford Blvd Fire Station Parking Lot Improvements Proposal 
June 12, 2017  
Page 4 of 4 

ACCEPTANCE 
 
If this proposal is acceptable to you, a signature on the enclosed copy of this letter and initials on the contract terms 
and conditions will serve as our authorization to proceed.   
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to present this proposal to you.  We look forward to working with you 
throughout this project. 
 
 
 
 
OHM ADVISORS   Charter Township of Ypsilanti   
CONSULTANT   CLIENT  
 
 
  (Signature)       
 
Matthew D. Parks, P.E.  (Name) Ms. Brenda Stumbo    
 
Principal in Charge  (Title) Township Supervisor    
 
  (Date)       
 
    
 
          (Signature)        
 

       (Name)  Ms. Karen Lovejoy Roe    
 
             (Title)  Township Clerk     
 

        (Date)        
 







 
 
 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To: Charter Township Board of Trustees   
 
From: Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 
 
Date: June 15, 2017 
 
Subject: Request Authorization for Lease of Neopost IN710 Mail Machine with 

MailFinance, Inc. for $352.90 per Month for Sixty (60) Months 
 
The lease on our current Pitney Bowes machine will expire at the end of June 2017 and 
we are currently paying $494.13 per month.  
 
We are requesting to lease a Neopost IN710 Mail Machine. This machine has updated 
technology and a faster running speed than our current machine. The machine is also 
designed more efficiently than our current machine, making it easier to release jams 
and provide maintenance to the machine.  
 
Lease costs for this machine is $352.90 ($141.23 less per month than we are currently 
paying) per month for sixty (60) months. This is State of Michigan pricing through the 
MIDeal program. This is budgeted in line item #101-267-000-730-000. We also received 
quotes from two other vendors, which are included.  
 
Thank you for your consideration. Should you have any questions, please contact my 
office. 
 
lrg 
 
Attachment 
 
cc: Files 
 
 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Supervisor’s  

Office 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 





































Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

7200 S Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197-7007 

 

WSCA/NASPO - PURCHASE ORDER - 

LEASE 

WSCA/NASPO: ADSPO11-00000411-4  

To: 

MailFinance Inc. 

478 Wheelers Farms Road 

Milford, CT 06461 

800-881-6245 

 

SHIP TO: 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

7200 S Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197-7007 

Debbie Graham 

734.544.3646 

 

  

P.O. DATE REQUISITIONER SHIPPED VIA F.O.B. POINT TERMS 

06/20/17 Debbie Graham Ground Closest Net 30 

 

QTY UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

1 IN710WP30DWP 

IN Series 700 Base w/ Mixed Size Feeder, 

w/Sealer, Drop Tray, Ink Cartridge, LAN 

Cable, Dynamic Weighing Platform, 30lb 

Weighing Platform, Power Line Conditioner, 

Router and a All-In-One PC with RunMyMail 

Software. 

 included 

1 WP3070STDN Stand for INWP30 and INWP70  included 

1 IN710ACTIVATION 
IN-710 Feature Activation - One Time 

Fee 
 included 

1 
INRMMCOMPSTAND 

 

RunMyMail Computer Stand - Includes 

a heavy duty stand for the All-In-One 

PC, full wireless keyboard and mouse. 

 included 

1 INDW30 
IN Series 700 base   

30lb. Differential Weighing 
 included 

1 MST2 Conveyor/Stacker  included 

     

     

60  Month 

60 month lease -  includes meter rental, 

standard maintenance and rate changes 

for the life of the lease. 

Billing Frequency: quarterly 

3x352.90=$1058.70 

 $352.90/mo 

  SUBTOTAL $21,174.00 

  SALES TAX 0 

  SHIPPING & HANDLING 0 

  OTHER 0 

  TOTAL $21,174.00 

 



1. Order is governed under the terms and conditions of the 

WSCA/NASPO Master Price Agreement Contract Number 

ADSPO11-00000411-4  Enter this order in accordance 

with the prices, terms, delivery method, and specifications 

listed above. 

2. Payments will be sent to: 

MailFinance 
25881 Network Place 
Chicago, IL 60673-1258 
Federal ID Number:  94-2984524 

 

3. Send all correspondence to: 
MailFinance Inc. 
478 Wheelers Farms Road 
Milford, CT 06461 
Phone 203-301-3400  Fax:  203-301-2600 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Print Name and Title  

 

 Authorized by Date 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jeff Allen, Director – Residential Services Department 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2017 
 
RE: Request to waive financial policy and award the low quote for   the 

purchase of a Toro bat-wing mower in the amount of $60,815.36 to be 
paid out of account 101.774.000.977.000  

 
 
In March we received quotes for the purchase of a Toro Bat-Wing mower. This 
request is to purchase a second mower from Spartan Distributors, who provided the 
lowest quote.  
 
You may recall, the golf course came with a request a while back, instead we re- 
furbished one of our mowers for them for around $16,000.  This left us 1 mower  
short of our regular fleet to maintain parks and municipal locations.  This purchase 
would replace the mower that we received a quote of over $30,000 to refurbish.    
 
This mower is budgeted in 101.774.000.977.000. I have also included an email 
from Spartan to show that their quote is still good. 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Residential Services Division 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484.0073 
Fax:  (734)544.3501 

 
www.ytown.org 

  

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 
HEATHER ROE 

MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 
 

http://www.ytown.org/


From : Jeff Allen 
<jallen@ytown.org>

Subject : Fwd: [SPAM?-NOSPF] 
Re: 4100D Quote

To : Lisa Garrett 
<lgarrett@ytown.org>

Zimbra lgarrett@ytown.org

Fwd: [SPAM?-NOSPF] Re: 4100D Quote

Thu, Jun 15, 2017 04:06 PM 

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

-------- Original message --------
From: Wayne Dudley <wdudley@ytown.org> 
Date: 6/15/17 3:48 PM (GMT-05:00) 
To: Jeff Allen <jallen@ytown.org> 
Subject: Fwd: [SPAM?-NOSPF] Re: 4100D Quote 

here is the email i was talking about, need a revised quote still? highlighted..........

Wayne Dudley
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
Public Services Superintendent
Office - 734.484.0073
Direct - 734.544.3514
Fax - 734.544.3501

Page 1 of 3Zimbra

6/16/2017https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=74538&tz=America/New_Yor...



From: "Michael Brannigan" <Michael.Brannigan@spartandist.com>

To: "Wayne Dudley" <wdudley@ytown.org>

Sent: Friday, April 21, 2017 5:32:55 PM

Subject: [SPAM?-NOSPF] Re: 4100D

Trash bracket not available from Toro. Purchase price for 
Groundsmaster 4100 firm thru 10/1/17.

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone

-------- Original message --------
From: Wayne Dudley <wdudley@ytown.org> 
Date: 4/21/17 7:58 AM (GMT-05:00) 
To: Michael Brannigan 
<Michael.Brannigan@spartandist.com> 
Subject: 4100D 

Micheal, couple questions - please...........

1 - does Toro make a bracket for the mowers for a trash bucket? We usually strap a 
pail to it, but this new one is all plastic and there is no where secure enough for our 
bucket or "grabber"

2 - if we were thinking to get another mower, would we use the same quote, or need a 
new one? What about combining with Tim's order?

thanx,

Wayne Dudley
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
Public Services Superintendent

Page 2 of 3Zimbra

6/16/2017https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=74538&tz=America/New_Yor...









 
 
 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 

 
 

Date:  May 22, 2017 

 
 

To:      Ypsilanti Township Board  
   

 

 
From: Brian McCleery,  

  Assistant Assessor 
 

 
Re:   Agenda Item to Authorize Property Sale to Mira Nelle 

  
  K-11-10-211-004 110 Johnson St- vacant lot 
 

 

The Assessor’s Office is requesting approval to finalize the sale of the above 

property to Ms. Nelle for $2,500 plus all closing costs.    

 
The above property is adjacent to Ms. Nelle’s vacant lot on Johnson St.  She 

has agreed to combine the above property with her existing lot and has also 
agreed that the resulting parcel will be used for the purposes of constructing 

a single family, owner occupied home.   
 

Attached you will find the letter of agreement, quit claim deed, past register 
of deeds documents for the property, an aerial photograph and recent pictures 

of the property.  If you have any questions or need more information, please 
don’t hesitate contacting me. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER ROE 

MONICA WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON JR. 

 

 Assessor’s Office 
 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 487-4927 
Fax:  (734) 484-5159 



 
 
110 Johnson St                 Vacant Johnson St 
Township Owned            Ms. Nelle Owns Corner Lot 
 
 
 
Ypsilanti Township owns ½ of the visible land above.   
 



 
 

Map of 110 Johnson St 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

110 Johnson St -  Lot 35 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 

Letter of Agreement 
 

May 18, 2017 
 
Mira Nelle 
9747 Geddes Rd. #2 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 
Dear Ms. Nelle 
 
This letter (the “Agreement”) summarizes the understanding of the agreement that we 
reached during our e-mail conversation on May 15, 2017.  If this Agreement is 
acceptable to you, please sign below in the space designated for your signature. 
 
The agreement is as follows: 
 

1. Agreement 
The following is agreed upon for the Purchase of Township Owned Property: 
 

The property listed below will be purchased for the price of $2,500 paid by 
certified check.  The Property is to be combined with purchaser’s adjacent 
vacant residential parcel on Johnson St, parcel id K-11-10-211-005.  This 
property will be used for development of a single family, owner occupied, 
residential property. Closing costs, including title search are the 
responsibility of the purchaser.  

 
Parcel K-11-10-211-004 described as: 
110 Johnson St- Vacant 
Lots 35 Johnson Place Subdivision 

  
  

2. Term 
The term of this Agreement (“Term”) will commence as of May 18, 2017 and will 
continue to be in effect for 6 months or until November 18, 2017, at which point it 
shall terminate, unless the Term is extended or terminated earlier in a written 
document signed by both parties. 
 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER ROE 

MONICA WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON JR. 

 

 Assessor’s Office 
 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 487-4927 
Fax:  (734) 484-5159 



3. Closing 
For the agreed upon sum of $2,500 plus all closing costs, paid in full by certified 
check, Ypsilanti Township agrees to sell the above described properties to you 
via the recording of a Quit Claim Deed in the name of Mira Nelle. 
 
4. Termination 
This agreement shall terminate upon the closing of the sale of the above property 
or the expiration of the Term after November 18, 2017. 

 
If the above correctly expresses your understanding of the terms reached during 
the negotiations, please sign and date a copy of this Agreement and return the 
signed and dated Agreement to me. 
 
Accepted and agreed to on   ____________________, 20____by 
 
 
_________________________      _________________________ 
Brenda L Stumbo, Supervisor   Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Dr.    7200 S. Huron River Dr. 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197     Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
 
Notary Public,_____________________County  
 
My Commission Expires on_________________ 
 

 
  
 
Accepted and agreed to on   ____________________, 20____by 
 
 
 
                           ______________________________ 
      Mira Nelle 
 
 
 

             
________________________________ 
 
Notary Public,_____________________County  
 
My Commission Expires on_________________ 



 

 

 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation, whose address is 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, Michigan 48197, 
quitclaims to Mira Nelle, a single person, whose address is 9747 Geddes Rd #2, Ypsilanti, Michigan 
48197, the following property located in the Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, and State of 
Michigan and described as: 

Lot 35   
 Johnson Place Subdivision 
 

Parcel Id: K-11-10-211-004 (110 Johnson St- vacant) 
 

For the full consideration of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500).  

Property to be combined with purchaser’s adjacent vacant residential property.  The property will be used 
to develop a single family, owner occupied, residential property.  

 

Dated this _____day of ________________ 2017 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation 

By:________________________________                                                                                           
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor 

By:________________________________     
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

Acknowledged before me in Washtenaw County, Michigan, on this _____day of ______________2017, 
by Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor, and Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of Charter Township of Ypsilanti, a 
Michigan municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation. 

My Commission Expires: 

____________________       _________________________________   
                   Notary Public 

       _________________________________  

       Printed Name 

     _______________County, Michigan 

Drafted By:  Brian McCleery, Ypsilanti Township 

7200 S. Huron River Dr., Ypsilanti, MI 48197 







































































 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, JULY 18, 2017 AT   

APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #209 TURTLE CREEK #2  

 
 



 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, JULY 18, 2017 AT 

APPROXIMATELY 7:15PM – CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #210 FORD LAKE VILLAGE #2-2 

 
 



 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 


	June 20, 2017
	Departmental Reports
	14B Court May 2017
	Police Services May 2017
	Fire April 2017
	Fire May 2017

	Work Session Agenda
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Hearing Resolution 2017-16, Amend Lakeview Streetlight District #207
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	May 16, 2017 Work Session Minutes
	May 16, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Statements and Checks June 6, 2017
	Statements and Checks June 20, 2017
	Treasurer's Report

	Attorney Report
	New Business
	Budget Amendment #9
	Request Approval of First Amendment to Comprehensive Dev. Agreement
	Request to Amend Cooperative Agreement with Wash. Urban County
	Resolution 2017-13, Auth. HAVA Grant and Software Agreement for Election Equipment
	Request to Purchase Additional Election Equipment/Maintenance
	Resolution 2017-14, Purchase Tax Foreclosed Properties Under Right of First Refusal
	Resolution 2017-15, Abandoned Tax Delinquent Property
	Public Nuisance Abatement Requests
	Public Nuisance Abatement Padlocking
	Request Approval of OHM Agreement for Fire HQ Parking Lot
	Request to Relinquish One ACCD Unit to Superior Twp
	Request to Lease New Postage Machine
	Request to Award Low Quote for Purchase of Mower
	Request Approval of Sale of 110 Johnson St.
	Request to Approve Principles of Government
	Request to Withdraw from Aerotropolis Agreement
	Request to Set Public Hearing for Creation of Streetlight District #209 Turtle Creek
	Request to Set Public Hearing for Creation of Streetlight District #210 Ford Lake Village

	Other Business

	Jurisdiction: 
	Name: 
	Title: 
	ITEM NUMBERRow1: Verity Scan
	DESCRIPTIONRow1: Ballot scanner
	NUMBER OF LICENSESRow1: 
	ITEM NUMBERRow2: Verity Touch Writer
	DESCRIPTIONRow2: Ballot marking device
	NUMBER OF LICENSESRow2: 
	ITEM NUMBERRow3: 
	DESCRIPTIONRow3: 
	NUMBER OF LICENSESRow3: 
	ITEM NUMBERRow4: 
	DESCRIPTIONRow4: 
	NUMBER OF LICENSESRow4: 
	ITEM NUMBERRow5: 
	DESCRIPTIONRow5: 
	NUMBER OF LICENSESRow5: 
	ITEM NUMBERRow6: 
	DESCRIPTIONRow6: 
	NUMBER OF LICENSESRow6: 


